### The 7<sup>th</sup> International Scientific Conference EXERCISE FOR HEALTH AND REHABILITATION

The 3<sup>rd</sup> of December, 2021

Kaunas, Lithuania

### **BOOK OF ABSTRACTS**



### The 7<sup>th</sup> International Scientific Conference EXERCISE FOR HEALTH AND REHABILITATION

The 3<sup>rd</sup> of December, 2021

Kaunas, Lithuania

#### **ORGANIZERS**



#### **Department of Sports Medicine**

and



#### **Lithuanian Federation of Sports Medicine**

The aim of the conference is to bring together physiotherapists, occupational therapists, adapted physical activity specialists, sports medicine doctors, physical medicine and rehabilitation physicians, trainers and other specialists who are interested in the health promotion and rehabilitation modalities.

Abstracts included in the "Book of Abstracts" were reviewed by one independent scientific referee.

#### Referees:

**Prof. Dr. Kristina Berškienė** (Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine)

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Algė Daunoravičienė (Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine)

**Dr. Ernesta Gurskienė** (Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine) **Assoc. Prof. Dr. Alma Kajėnienė** (Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine)

Dr. Viktorija Kaktienė (Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine)

Dr. Vytautas Poškaitis (Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine)

**Dr. Agnė Slapšinskaitė-Dackevičienė** (Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine)

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Vilma Tamulionytė (Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine)

**Assoc. Prof. Dr. Brigita Zachovajevienė** (Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine)

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Renata Žumbakytė-Šermukšnienė (Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine)

Cover photo by Vytautas Poškaitis

ISBN 978-9955-15-733-5

All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any means, without the written permission of the publisher, nor be otherwise circulated in any form of binding or cover. The authors of abstracts are responsible for grammar and spelling check of the abstract.

©Copyright 2021 by the Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine. The individual essays remain the intellectual properties of the contributors.

#### **CONTENTS**

DOES YOUNG AGE ADULTS WHO HAVE POOR FOOT POSTURE ALSO HAVE WORSE BODY BALANCE?	8
Marius Martišius, Vilma Tamulionytė	8
EFFECTS OF VESTIBULAR PHYSIOTHERAPY AND UPPER BODY MOBILITY EXERCISES AT HOME ON QUALITY OF LIFE, DIZZINESS, BALANCE AND GAIT IN PATIENTS WITH VESTIBULAR NEURITIS	9
Brigita Milda Malinauskaitė, Eglė Lendraitienė	9
THE EFFECT OF DIFFERENT PHYSIOTHERAPY METHODS ON BALANCE, PROPRIOCEPTION, CORE MUSCLES ENDURANCE AND CORE STABILITY IN ADOLESCENTS WITH IDIOPATHIC SCOLIOSIS10	0
Viltė Štrapenskaitė, Edita Jazepčikienė10	0
CHANGES IN RESPIRATORY SYSTEM INDICES OF YOUNG SEDENTARY WORKERS WITH FORWARD HEAD POSTURE WHEN WORKSITE BASED EXERCISE PROGRAMME IS APPLIED	
Justė Indriliūnaitė, Vilma Tamulionytė1.	2
THE DYNAMIC OF SUBJECTIVELY ASSESSED UPPER EXTREMITIES FUNCTIONAL STATI AFTER EXERCISE PROGRAM PERFORMED AT WORKPLACE IN YOUNG SEDENTARY JOB WORKERS	3
Kristupas Lukminas, Vilma Tamulionytė1.	3
SHORT-TERM EFFECTS OF NEURODYNAMIC AND PROPRIOCEPION STIMULIATING EXERCISES FOR FUNCTIONAL INDICATORS OF LOWER EXTREMITIES IN YOUNG WOMEN WITH LOW PHYSICAL ACTIVITY LEVELS	5
Rima Zubrickaitė, Algė Daunoravičienė1.	5
SCAPULAR DYSKINESIS, DYNAMIC STABILITY OF UPPER EXTREMITY AND GRIP STRENGTH EVALUATION IN MALE BASKETBALL PLAYERS ACCORDING TO AGE AND DOMINANT SIDE10	6
Austėja Miniotaitė, Vidmantas Zaveckas, Laimonas Šiupšinskas10	6
CHANGES IN LOWER BACK AND PELVIC PAIN AND PSYCHOEMOTIONAL STATUS OF PREGNANT WOMEN USING WATER PHYSIOTHERAPY18	8
Elzė Šimašienė, Inesa Rimdeikienė	8
PARENTS' ATTITUDES TOWARD THE FACTORS AFFECTING THE PARTICIPATION IN DAILY LIFE OF CHILDREN WITH AUTISM20	0
Vaiva Martinkutė, Indrė Bakanienė	0
EFFECTS OF DIFFERENT PHYSIOTHERAPY METHODS ON PAIN INTENSITY AND NECK DISABILITY IN WOMEN WITH TENSION-TYPE HEADACHES2	1

Vasarė Kėsaitė, Edita Jazepčikienė21
THE EFFECTS OF DIFFERENTIAL LEARNING ON INDIVIDUALS WHO HAVE UNDERGONE BRAIN TUMOR SURGERY AND THE ASSESSMENT OF PERSONAL MOTIVATION ON POSTURE MANAGEMENT22
Laura Aslam, Eglė Lendraitienė22
THE EFFECT OF NEUROMUSCULAR TRAINING PROGRAM ON FUNCTIONAL CHARACTERISTICS OF UPPER EXTREMITY IN HANDBALL AND BASKETBALL PLAYERS24
Eglė Laurinavičiūtė, Laimonas Šiupšinskas24
EFFICIENCY OF DYNAMIC NEUROMUSCULAR STABILIZATION AND TRANSCUTANEOUS ELECTRICAL NERVE STIMULATION ON BACK PAIN AND TRUNK MUSCLE ENDURANCE IN MIDDLE-AGED AND OLDER ADULTS26
Skirmantė Danytė, Vilma Dudonienė26
DOES PHYSICAL EXERCISES MAKE A DIFFERENCE FOR RISK OF FALLING AND INDEPENDENCE OF THE ELDERLY?27
Mindaugas Karvelis, Agnė Slapšinskaitė-Dackevičienė27
THE IMPACT OF RED-S ON THE MENTAL AND PHYSICAL HEALTH OF ATHLETES 29
Rūta Čiurlionytė, Renata Žumbakytė-Šermukšnienė, Miglė Baranauskaitė29
BALANCE, GAIT, RISK OF FALLS, UPPER EXTREMITIES TREMOR AND QUALITY OF LIFE CHANGES THROUGH DIFFERENT BALANCE AND GAIT PROGRAMS FOR PEOPLE WITH PARKINSON'S DISEASE
Edmantas Rėkus, Eglė Lendraitienė
EVALUATION OF FUNCTIONAL MUSCLE STRENGTH, BALANCE AND MOTIVATION IN PATIENTS WITH PARKINSON'S DISEASE AFTER USING A LONG-TERM PHYSIOTHERAPY PROGRAM
Karolina Ažukaitė, Eglė Lendraitienė31
CHANGES IN THE PHYSICAL CAPACITY, MOVEMENT FUNCTION OF PATIENTS WITH PARKINSON'S DISEASE BASED ON MINDFULNESS EXERCISES, DEPENDING ON THE TIME OF THE PROCEDURE
Agnė Kubiliūtė, Eglė Lendraitienė, Jurgita Daubarienė33
THE CORRELATION BETWEEN LOWER LIMB MUSCLE STRENGTH AND LENGTH, JOINT RANGE OF MOTION, BALANCE, FOOT POSTURE AND PAIN INTENSITY IN PATIENTS WITH NONSPECIFIC LOW BACK PAIN
Akvilė Janavičiūtė, Lina Leimonienė, Gražina Krutulytė35
THE IMPACT OF THE TREE THEME METHOD ON THE QUALITY OF LIFE AND DAILY ACTIVITIES OF PEOPLE WITH MENTAL ILLNESS AND ANXIETY DISORDERS

Miglė Olencevičiūtė, Daiva Petruševičienė	. 36
RESEARCH OF PARENTS AND REHABILITATION SPECIALISTS ATTITUDE TO THE APPLICATION OF TELEMEDICINE PRINCIPLES IN CHILDREN'S REHABILITATION	38
Marija Milašiūtė, Audronė Prasauskienė	. 38
THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN FUNCTIONAL STATE OF THIGH MUSCLES, LUMBOPELVIC MOVEMENT CONTROL, ERGONOMICS AND LOW BACK PAIN IN OFFIC WORKERS	
Rūta Maknavičiūtė, Eglė Lendraitienė	39
EFFECTS OF DIFFERENT PHYSIOTHERAPEUTIC MEASURES FOR A FUNCTIONAL CONDITION FOR PEOPLE WITH CHRONIC LOW BACK PAIN	40
Roberta Bačiulytė, Gražina Krutulytė	40
THE EFFECT OF CORRECTIVE EXERCISES ON THE FUNCTIONAL CONDITION OF THE UPPER LIMB OF SEDENTARY WORKERS	42
Mindaugas Arnašius, Brigita Zachovajevienė	. 42
POSSIBILITIES OF PROVIDING REHABILITATION SERVICES THROUGH TELEMEDICIN FOR CHILDREN WITH CEREBRAL PARALYSIS	
Ieva Stakauskaitė, Indrtė Bakanienė	. 43
ATTITUDE OF PARENTS RAISING CHILDREN WITH SERIOUS COMPLEX DISABILITIES ON ALTERNATIVE REHABILITATION METHODS	
Ligita Žilaitienė	. 44
TEACHERS' ATTITUDE TOWARDS BEHAVIORAL ISSUES AND LACK OF INDEPENDENT IN CHILDREN WITH AUTISM	
Evaldas Melceris, Audronė Prasauskienė	. 46
DAY-CARE CENTER SPECIALISTS' KNOWLEDGE AND ATTITUDES IN MANAGING THE BEHAVIORAL PROBLEMS IN CHILDREN WITH AUTISM	
Ugnė Steponavičiūtė, Indrė Bakanienė	47
ASSESEMENT OF DIFFERENT PATIENT - REPORTED OUTCOME MEASURES IN PATIEN WITH LOW BACK PAIN	
Giedrė Vaičienė, Kristina Berškienė, Vilma Tamulionytė, Vidmantas Zaveckas	. 48
EVALUATION OF POSTURE, RESPIRATORY SYSTEM FUNCTIONAL PARAMETERS, FRUNK STATIC ENDURANCE AND LUMBAR – PELVIC STABILITY IN YOUNG ADULTS WITH BODY TILT	
Simona Kačkauskaitė $^{1,2}$ , Algė Daunoravičienė $^{l}$ , Margarita Radži $ar{u}$ nienė $^{2}$	. 50
PARENTS AND SPECIALISTS APPROACH TO GOALS PHYSICAL THERAPY FOR CHILDREN WITH CEREBRAL PARALYSIS INVESTIGATION	51
Laima Liaudanskytė, Indrė Bakanienė	51

THE EFFECT OF CORRECTIVE EXERCISES ON THE FUNCTIONAL STATE OF THE	
CERVICAL SPINE FOR WOMEN IN SEDENTARY WORK	53
Kotryna Tallat-Kelpšaitė, Brigita Zachovajevienė	53
EVALUATION OF TRUNK MUSCLES ELECTRICAL ACTIVITY, LOAD OF EXERCISE AN SUBJECTIVE SENSATION USING OUTDOOR FITNESS EQUIPMENT FOR YOUNG ADUI	LTS
Tautvydas Bradūnas, Algė Daunoravičienė, Deivydas Velička	
CORRECTIVE EXERCISES: ASSESSMENT OF DYNAMIC CHANGES IN ANKLE STABILIAND PROPRIOCEPTION AMONG WOMEN ATTENDING DANCE WORKOUTS	
Miglė Vaiciukevičiūtė, Agnė Slapšinskaitė - Dackevičienė	56
EFFECTIVENESS OF FUNCTIONAL MAGNETIC STIMULATION ON PELVIC FLOOR MUSCLE FUNCTION, URINARY INCONTINENCE SYMPTOMS AND QUALITY OF LIFE I FEMALE WITH STRESS URINARY INCONTINENCE	
Indrė Kirklytė <sup>1</sup> , Renata Rutkauskaitė <sup>2</sup>	57

### DOES YOUNG AGE ADULTS WHO HAVE POOR FOOT POSTURE ALSO HAVE WORSE BODY BALANCE?

#### Marius Martišius, Vilma Tamulionytė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine

**Introduction.** Body balance depends on a well-developed body structure, on the interaction of nervous, joint, ligament and muscular systems together. Therefore, failure of at least one system also impairs the stability of the body. It is believed that the balance of the body is greatly influenced by the height and flexibility of the foot and its arch (1, 2). The aim of this research - to evaluate correlation between foot posture and balance in young age adults who have poor foot posture before and after home exercise program.

Research methods and organization. The study was approved by the Lithuanian University of Health Sciences Bioethics Center. All participants signed informed consent forms. In this study participated 21 young age adults (11 females and 10 males) who had poor foot posture. The participants' age was 24 (20 - 37; 26.5) years. Inclusion criteria: 18 - 40 years old; poor foot posture. During this study foot posture was evaluated with Foot Posture Index (FPI-6), static body balance was assessed with Balance Error Scoring System (BESS) and dynamic body balance was evaluated with Functional Reach Test. Based on the results of the initial evaluation, specialised home exercise program was developed, which consisted of flexibility, strengthening and proprioception exercises for foot and ankle. The participants were asked to perform exercise program for 30 minutes. 3 times per week for six weeks till the second evaluation. Statistical data analysis was performed with SPSS (Statistical Package for Social Sciences) 27.0. Correlation was estimated using Spearman's correlation coefficient (r). Correlation when |r| > 0.7 was considered strong,  $0.3 < |r| \le 0.7$  — medium strength and  $|r| \le 0.3$  — weak. The correlation was considered significant when the significance level was p<0.05.

Results. Analysing foot posture and static balance correlation before home exercise program, significant direct correlations were found strong correlation with the dominant foot (r=0.702, p=0.001), medium strength correlation with the non-dominant foot (r=0.584, p=0.005). Participants who had better foot posture also had better static balance. After the exercise program, the analysis of the relationship between the foot posture and the static balance showed a statistically significant medium strength direct correlations: with the dominant foot (r=0.547, p=0.01) and with the non-dominant foot (r=0.533, p=0.013). Analysis of the dominant foot posture and the dynamic balance relationship before home exercise program revealed statistically significant medium strength inverse correlation (r=-0.485, p=0.026). Participants who had better foot posture also had better dynamic balance. Meanwhile, no statistically significant correlation was observed with the non-dominant foot. After evaluating the correlations between the foot posture and the dynamic body balance after the exercise program, it was observed that there were a statistically significant inverse correlations of medium strength: with the dominant foot (r=-0.505, p=0.02) and with the non-dominant foot (r=-0.482, p=0.027).

**Conclusions:** Young age adults with a poor foot posture appeared to have a relationship between their feet posture and both static and dynamic balance. Participants who had better foot posture also had a better static balance both before and after the home exercise program. Moreover, participants with better foot posture showed greater dynamic balance before and after the home exercise program.

#### Refrences list:

- 1. Chao T-C, Jiang BC. A Comparison of Postural Stability during Upright Standing between Normal and Flatfooted Individuals, Based on COP-Based Measures. Entropy. 2017;19(2):76.
- 2. Kim JA, Lim OB, Yi CH. Difference in static and dynamic stability between flexible flatfeet and neutral feet. Gait Posture. 2015;41(2):546–50.

### EFFECTS OF VESTIBULAR PHYSIOTHERAPY AND UPPER BODY MOBILITY EXERCISES AT HOME ON QUALITY OF LIFE, DIZZINESS, BALANCE AND GAIT IN PATIENTS WITH VESTIBULAR NEURITIS

#### Brigita Milda Malinauskaitė, Eglė Lendraitienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Rehabilitation

Introduction: Imbalance and dizziness remain for up to several weeks after vestibular neuritis [1]. Considering the conclusions of other researchers that in the presence of damage to the vestibular system, tension in the neck and lumbar muscles emerges [2,3] and restricted movements of the upper body affects the static and dynamic balance [4-6], it was hypothesized that upper body mobility exercises improve quality of life, dizziness, balance and gait in patients after vestibular neuritis. In order to ensure continuous treatment of vestibular system, physiotherapy was performed at home. The aim of this study was to determine the effect of vestibular physiotherapy with upper body mobility exercises at home on quality of life, dizziness, balance and gait.

Research methods and organization. The research was approved by the Lithuanian University of Health Science Bioethics Center. The research was performed at LSMUL Kaunas Clinics and JSC "Ortopedijos paslaugų klinika". Eighteen patients -7 men and 11 women (age = 43 (29-68; 46) years) were divided into two exposure groups: VP (n=9), VP-UBM (n=9) groups by a systematic selection method. On average, patients participated in the study after 25.5 (21-31; 25.94) days after acute vestibular neuritis. Selection criteria: the study included adults from 18 years old; patient had been diagnosed with acute vestibular neuritis ( $\leq$ 31 days before study); patient had imbalance and / or gait disorder ( $\leq$ 22 points according to Dynamic gait index;  $\leq$ 40 points according to Berg scale); patient did not have any musculoskeletal disorders and / or did not use aids prior to illness; consent to participate in the study. Patients were examined before and after physiotherapy. Subjects performed vestibular physiotherapy five exercises for two weeks, five times a week, once per day at home. VP-UBM group performed additional ten upper body mobility exercises. During the first examination, patients were given a memory paper of the exercises and the performance of the exercises was explained. Methods: Dizziness Handicap Inventory (to assess quality of life); Motion Sensitivity Quotient (to assess dizziness); Berg balance scale (to assess balance); Dynamic gait index (to assess gait). Statistical analysis was performed with IBM SPSS. Mann-Whitney-Wilcoxon criterion was used for two independent samples and the Wilcoxon criterion was used for two dependent samples as a post-hoc analysis. (p<0.05 was considered statistically significant).

**Research results.** Before physiotherapy, VP and VP-UBM groups were homogeneous by gender, age, quality of life, dizziness, balance and by gait results (p>0.05). Analysing Dizziness Handicap results after physiotherapy, the quality of life was statistically significantly improved – VP (Z=-2.687; p=0.007), and VP-UBM (Z=-2.670; p=0.008) groups. However, comparing the quality of life between groups, the VP-UBM group had a bigger statistically significant improvement than VP group (U=14.00; p=0.019). Analysing Motion Sensitivity Quotient results, dizziness in VP group statistically significantly decreased after physiotherapy (Z=-2.103; p=0.035) as well as in the VP-UBM group (Z=-

2.549; p=0.011). However, comparing both groups, the VP-UBM group had a statistically significant greater decreasement of dizziness compared to VP (U=11.00; p=0.009). Analysing Berg balance scale results, patients balance improved after physiotherapy in both VP (Z=-2.524; p=0.012) and VP-UBM group (Z=-2.675; p=0.007). Comparing both groups, there was a greater statistically significant improvement in the VP-UBM group than VP (U=14.00; p=0.019). Analysing Dynamic gait index results, VP group patients gait results ware statistically significantly increased after physiotherapy (Z=-2.588; p=0.010), as well as in the VP-UBM group (Z=-2.692; p=0.007). Compared to VP group, there was a bigger statistically significant improvement in gait index results in the VP-UBM group (U=14.50; p=0.020).

Conclusions: After physiotherapy patients with vestibular neuritis quality of life, dizziness, balance and gait improved in both, vestibular physiotherapy and vestibular physiotherapy with upper body mobility, groups. After the vestibular physiotherapy and upper body mobility exercises patients quality of life, dizziness, balance and gait results were statistically significantly greater compared to patients who performed only vestibular physiotherapy.

#### **References:**

- 1. Le TN, Westerberg BD, Lea J. Vestibular neuritis: Recent advances in etiology, diagnostic evaluation, and treatment. Adv Otorhinolaryngol. 2019;82:87–92.
- 2. Klatt BN, Carender WJ, Lin CC, Alsubaie SF, Kinnaird CR, Sienko KH, et al. A Conceptual Framework for the Progression of Balance Exercises in Persons with Balance and Vestibular Disorders. Phys Med Rehabil Int [Internet]. 2015/04/28. 2015;2(4):1044. Available from: https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/27489886
- 3. Thompson LA, Haburcakova C, Lewis RF. Postural compensation strategy depends on the severity of vestibular damage. Heliyon [Internet]. 2017 Mar 22;3(3):e00270–e00270. Available from: https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/28393118
- 4. Objero CN, Wdowski MM, Hill MW. Can arm movements improve postural stability during challenging standing balance tasks? Gait Posture [Internet]. 2019;74(May):71–5. Available from: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.gaitpost.2019.08.010
- 5. Patel M, Buckwell D, Hawken M, Bronstein AM. Does outstretching the arms improve postural stability? Neurosci Lett [Internet]. 2014;579:97–100. Available from: http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.neulet.2014.07.010 6. Boström KJ, Dirksen T, Zentgraf K, Wagner H. The Contribution of Upper Body Movements to Dynamic Balance Regulation during Challenged Locomotion. Front Hum Neurosci. 2018;12:8.

## THE EFFECT OF DIFFERENT PHYSIOTHERAPY METHODS ON BALANCE, PROPRIOCEPTION, CORE MUSCLES ENDURANCE AND CORE STABILITY IN ADOLESCENTS WITH IDIOPATHIC SCOLIOSIS

#### Viltė Štrapenskaitė, Edita Jazepčikienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Rehabilitation

**Introduction.** 34-50 percent of children and adolescents have an abnormal posture [1]. By X-ray scan a doctor can determine whether the cause of the abnormal posture is a common pathology - adolescent idiopathic scoliosis [2]. This spinal deformity is observed in three planes and can cause problems with balance, proprioception [3] and core stability [4]. Two different physiotherapy methods are used to solve these problems - core stabilization exercises and aqua therapy, which are considered to be effective conservative methods in the treatment of scoliosis. The aim of a research is to evaluate the

effect of these methods on balance, proprioception, core muscles endurance and core stability in adolescents with idiopathic scoliosis.

Research methods and organization. The study was approved by the Lithuanian University of Health Science Bioethics center (BEC-SR(M)-118). The study was conducted from May 2021 to October 2021 at Vilnius city health care clinic "Medical diagnostic and treatment center". It included 20 (n=20) subjects aged 10-18 years with adolescent idiopathic scoliosis (Cobb's angle <45°). All the subjects were girls and they were divided into two experimental groups: group I (n=10), aged 13,8±1,9 years, and group II (n=10), aged 13,9±2,0 years. Group I received aqua therapy while group II received core stabilization exercises. The subjects had 10 physiotherapy sessions twice a week for 30 minutes. Methods used in the study: Fukuda stepping test for measuring balance and proprioception, McGill test for measuring core muscles endurance and "Stabilizer" device for assessing core stability. Statistical analysis was performed by IBM SPSS Statistics 27 and Microsoft Excel software. Data is presented as median, minimum value, maximum value, and mean. The Wilcoxon signed-rank test was calculated to compare two dependent samples, Mann-Whitney U test to compare two independent samples. Data is considered statistically significant at p<0.05.

Results. After evaluation of the results of balance and proprioception, the angle of body rotation in group I decreased significantly from 15.5 (5-34; 17.6) to 14.5 (5-27; 14.3) degrees, (Z=-2.536; p=0.011), in group II from 13.5 (4-35; 16.8) to 11.0 (4-28; 14.0) degrees, (Z=-2.533; p=0.011). After comparing balance and proprioception tests results between experimental groups, no significant differences were found, p>0,05. After evaluation of muscles endurance results, significant differences were found: in group I results of flexor test increased from 56.6 (31-77; 56.5) to 76.0 (44-99; 76.6)s, (Z=-2,809; p=0,008), in group II from 57.5 (18-81; 51.0) to 68.5 (26-95; 65.0)s, (Z=-2,784; p=0,048). After measuring extensor endurance, in group I results increased from 111.0 (53-157; 110.0) to 121.5 (65-172; 123.3)s, (Z=-2,805; p=0,005), in group II from 115.5 (51-165; 110.8) to 128.0 (61-170; 119.5)s, (Z=-2,814; p=0,009). Right side-bridge endurance test results in group I increased from 50.5 (30-72; 49.2) to 64.5 (39-85; 61.2)s, (Z=-2,807; p=0,009), in group II from 54.5 (20-76; 54.0) to 72.0 (33-101; 72.3)s, (Z=-2,805; p=0,011). Left side-bridge endurance test results in group I increased from 50.0 (30-66; 45.7) to 55.5 (38-75; 54.7)s, (Z=-2,812; p=0,005), in group II from 50.5 (19-76; 50.5) to 65.5 (30-94; 66.4)s, (Z=-2,809; p=0,042). After comparing results between the groups, no significant differences were found, p>0,05. At the end of the research, core stability results improved significantly in both groups: flexion in group I from 46.0 (40-50; 45.9) to 49.5 (46-50; 49.0)mmHg, (Z=-2.226;p=0.026), in group II from 47.0 (38-50; 45.9) to 50.0 (46-50; 49.4)mmHg, (Z=-2.524;p=0.012), extension in group I from 29.5 (21-30; 27.5) to 30.0 (25-31; 29.4)mmHg, (Z=-2.041;p=0.041), in group II from 27.5 (20-32; 26.9) to 30,0 (29-30; 29,8)mmHg, (Z=-2.252;p=0.024). However, no significant differences were found in core stability results between groups, p>0.05.

Conclusions. 1.At the end of the study, balance and proprioception of adolescents with scoliosis improved significantly in aqua therapy and core stabilization groups.2.At the end of the study, core muscles endurance and core stability of adolescents with scoliosis improved significantly in aqua therapy and core stabilization groups.3.At the end of the study, there were no significant differences of the effect on balance, proprioception, core muscles endurance and core stability between aqua therapy and core stabilization exercises.

#### **References list:**

1. Yang L, Lu X, Yan B, Huang Y. Prevalence of Incorrect Posture among Children and Adolescents: Finding from a Large Population-Based Study in China. iScience. 2020;23(5):101043. doi:10.1016/j.isci.2020.101043. 2. Balagué F, Pellisé F. Adolescent idiopathic scoliosis and back pain. Scoliosis Spinal Disord. 2016;11(1):27. doi:10.1186/s13013-016-0086-7.

- 3. Dąbrowska A, Olszewska-Karaban MA, Permoda-Białozorczyk AK, Szalewska DA. The Postural Control Indexes during Unipodal Support in Patients with Idiopathic Scoliosis. Biomed Res Int. 2020; 2020. doi.org/10.1155/2020/7936095.
- 4. Gür G, Ayhan C, Yakut Y. The effectiveness of core stabilization exercise in adolescent idiopathic scoliosis: A randomized controlled trial. Prosthet Orthot Int. 2017;41(3):303-310. doi.org/10.1177/0309364616664151.

## CHANGES IN RESPIRATORY SYSTEM INDICES OF YOUNG SEDENTARY WORKERS WITH FORWARD HEAD POSTURE WHEN WORKSITE BASED EXERCISE PROGRAMME IS APPLIED

#### Justė Indriliūnaitė, Vilma Tamulionytė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine

**Introduction.** Abnormal head posture affects thoracic expansion, alveolar ventilation, and decreases lung volume and capacity, resulting in respiratory muscle weakness [1]. Forward head posture impairs the mobility and function of the diaphragm and causes inefficient contraction of abdominal muscles, decreasing lung capacity [1]. It is important to exercise in worksite because the time spent sitting for a long time in a static position cannot be compensated by more physically active leisure time [2]. Research aim - to evaluate the change of respiratory system's indicators of young people with forward head posture working sedentary work after exercises program performed during work.

**Research methods and organization.** The study was approved by the Lithuanian University of Health Sciences Bioethics Center. All participants signed informed consent forms. In this study participated 19 young adults with forward head posture (FHP) working in a sedentary job. Average participant's age was  $27 \pm 4.7$  years. Ten of them were women and nine of them – men. Inclusion criteria were young age (18 – 44 years), sedentary job, forward head posture. In this study, subjective and objective evaluations were performed to assess respiratory function. Objective evaluation indices were chest excursion (using a measuring tape). Hench and Stange tests (participants were asked to hold their breathing in different conditions and the time was assessed with chronometer) and breathing rate. Subjective evaluation was performed using Breathing self-assessment questionnaire (SEBQ), which allows both qualitative and quantitative assessment of the respiratory system and provides information about the subject's perceived discomfort. A score of 11 or over is indicative of breathing pattern disorder. After the evaluation, individuals were introduced with exercise program, consisting of stretching, strengthening, and mobility exercises for the cervical spine and shoulder region and were asked to perform it 10-15 min each day at their worksite, during their rest breaks. The study lasted for eight weeks, after which evaluation was repeated. Statistical data analysis was performed with SPSS (Statistical Package for Social Sciences) 29.0. Data in the text are presented as median (minimal and maximal values; average). Wilcoxon signed-rank test was used to compare two related samples. Correlation was estimated using Spearman's correlation coefficient (r). Correlation when |r|>0.7 was considered strong,  $0.3 < |r| \le 0.7$  – medium and  $|r| \le 0.3$  - weak. Differences and correlations with p<0.05 were considered statistically significant.

**Results.** The median of breathing questionnaire was 15 (11 - 22; 15.21) points at the beginning of the research and it decreased to 11 (1 - 21; 10.16) points after the study. This change of SEBQ was statistically significant (Z = -3.157; p = 0.002) - respiratory function improved on the basis of subjective data. After evaluating the objective indices reflecting the respiratory system, it was found that the breathing rate decreased statistically significantly after the applied exercise program (Z = -3.157) and Z = -3.157 is the statistically significantly after the applied exercise program (Z = -3.157).

3.602; p < 0.001). At baseline, breathing rate was 25 (20 - 36; 26.60) breaths per minute, and it decreased to 15.50 (12 - 25; 16.80) breaths per minute. Moreover, statistically significant changes in the results of Hench (Z = -3.466; p < 0.001) and Stange (Z = -3.594; p < 0.001) tests were found, which indicates improved function of respiratory system. The median of Hench test results before the research was 10.50 (9 - 19; 12.10) seconds and it increased to 17.50 (9 - 38; 20.40) seconds after the study. The median of the Stange test at baseline was 19 (10 - 25; 18.32) seconds and after the study it increased to 35 (14 - 62; 35.47) seconds. The chest excursion of the participants after the exercise program increased statistically significantly (Z = -3.066; p = 0.002). Prior to the exercise program, the median was 7 (5 - 8.5; 7.18) cm, and eight weeks later, the median of the final assessment was 8 (6.5 - 9.5; 8.11) cm. This change indicates an improved breathing function. No statistically significant correlations were observed between objective and subjective respiratory system indices before the research (p > 0.05). But during follow up a statistically significant strong reverse relationship was found between SEBQ and these objective indices: the chest excursion (r = - 0.757; p < 0.001), the Hench test (r = - 0.674; p = 0.002) and the Stange test (r = - 0.755; p < 0.001). Also, a statistically significant strong direct relationship with breathing rate was found (r = 0.724; p < 0.001).

Conclusion. The respiratory system's function of young sedentary workers with forward head posture after eight weeks of exercise program performed during work changed: both subjective and objective evaluations indices improved. After exercise program those participants who subjectively evaluated individual respiratory system's function better also had better results of respiratory system's objective parameters: chest excursion, breath holding time during Hench and Stange tests, breathing rate.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Kim SY, Jung JH, Kim NS. The effects of McKenzie exercise on forward head posture and respiratory function. The Journal of Korean Physical Therapy. The Korean Society of Physical Therapy. 2019; 31 (6): 351 357.
- 2. Shrestha N, Kukkonen-Harjula KT, Verbeek JH, Ijaz S, Hermans V, Pedisic Z. Workplace interventions for reducing sitting at work. Cochrane Database Syst Rev. 2018; 6 (6): CD010912.

## THE DYNAMIC OF SUBJECTIVELY ASSESSED UPPER EXTREMITIES FUNCTIONAL STATE AFTER EXERCISE PROGRAM PERFORMED AT WORKPLACE IN YOUNG SEDENTARY JOB WORKERS

#### Kristupas Lukminas, Vilma Tamulionytė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine

**Introduction.** Although sedentary work is most commonly associated with lower back problems (muscle imbalance, low back pain), research has shown that 48% of young people have complained about upper extremity disorders (1). Many different methods and tools are used to assess hand function. Individuals tend to assess their functional status subjectively too well or too poorly, so it is always necessary to compare the results with an objective examination (2). It is emphasized that an exercise program can improve both the results of objective assessment and subjective assessment (3). The study aim - to evaluate the changes of upper extremities function's subjective indicators after exercise program performed at workplace in young sedentary job workers.

**Research methods and organization.** The study was approved by the Lithuanian University of Health Sciences Bioethics center (BEC-SR (M) -121). Consent forms were signed before taking part in the study. 14 individuals participated in the study - 8 men and 6 women. The age of the participants was

 $24.8 \pm 2.04$  years. All subjects have been working sedentary job for at least one year and spent at least four hours at a computer/telephone. Only three participants indicated that they attend additional physical activities after work. For the evaluation of the upper extremity functional state, participants were asked to fill the WORQ-UP questionnaire before and after the exercise program. The questions in this questionnaire reflect four main groups of activities: strength, dexterity, use of tools and mobility. The questionnaire consists of 17 questions. Each question has 6 possible answer options, which are scored: 0 - not performed, 1 - no difficulties; 2 - slight difficulties; 3 - moderate difficulties; 4 - severe difficulties; 5 - very difficult or impossible. Not performed (NA) is indicated when the mentioned actions in the work were not performed. The overall score was averaged. The smaller it is, the better the functional condition of the upper extremity. Participants were asked to perform exercise program in their workplace for six weeks, every workday for 15 minutes. The program included stretching, muscle strengthening and relaxation exercises for the neck, upper extremities and thoracic spine regions, the intensity of program has been increased gradually over time. Data analysis was performed using the IBM SPSS Statistics 21 software package. Data are presented as median (minimal value, maximal value; mean). The Wilcoxon criterion was used to compare two dependent samples. A statistically significant difference was considered when p<0.05.

Results. Assessing how difficult it was for the participants to perform the activities listed in the questionnaire, we found out that none of the respondents stated that they found very difficult/impossible to perform the activities listed in the questionnaire; one participant pointed out that she experienced difficulties, and one - mild difficulties while performing tasks identified in the questionnaire. 83.3% of women indicated that they do not use hand-held devices, and there were no men who would have chosen NA (not performed). Analysis of specific questionnaire areas revealed that in strength area, only wheelchair pushing was pointed out by participants as difficult task. In dexterity area, only using hand exert force was pointed as difficult task. In tools and equipment area, working with power tools and devices that cause high vibrations was named as difficult task. In the mobility area only one women pointed out that driving could cause some small difficulties. Comparing the results of the WORQ-UP questionnaire before and after exercise program, a statistically significant difference was observed (Z =-3,059; p=0.002), functional state of upper extremities function has improved. The total score at the beginning was 1.28 (1 - 2.17; 1.33) points, and the total score after the exercise program was 1.03 (1 - 1.4; 1.08) points. Although a statistically significant difference was observed after the exercise program in the overall sample, only the men results changed (Z=-2.251; p=0.012). A change was observed in the female group, but it was not statistically significant. After the exercise program, the results of using the tools and equipment changed the most.

Conclusions: According to our results, young sedentary job workers are not experiencing a lot of difficulties performing daily tasks involving their upper extremities. Despite that, the subjective assessment of upper extremities functional state after exercise program performed at workplace revealed the improvement in functional state, but only in men.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Aerts BRJ, Kuijer PPFM, Beumer A, Eygendaal D, Frings-Dresen MHW. Development of a novel WOrk-Related Questionnaire for UPper extremity disorders (WORQ-UP). Int Arch Occup Environ Health. 2017 Nov; 90 (8): 823–33.
- 2. Fidai MS, Saltzman BM, Meta F, Lizzio VA, Stephens JP, Bozic KJ, et al. Patient-reported outcomes measurement information system and legacy patient-reported outcome measures in the field of orthopedics: a systematic review. Arthrosc J Arthrosc Relat Surg. 2018 Feb;34(2):605-614.
- 3. Shariat A, Lam ETC, Kargarfard M, Tamrin SBM, Danaee M. The application of a feasible exercise training program in the office setting. Work. 2017 Jan 1;56(3):421–8.

# SHORT-TERM EFFECTS OF NEURODYNAMIC AND PROPRIOCEPION STIMULIATING EXERCISES FOR FUNCTIONAL INDICATORS OF LOWER EXTREMITIES IN YOUNG WOMEN WITH LOW PHYSICAL ACTIVITY LEVELS

#### Rima Zubrickaitė, Algė Daunoravičienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine

**Introduction.** Low physical activity lifestyle is a relevant issue of modern times. Insufficient physical activity can cause significant problems for mental and physical health, especially musculoskeletal system (1,2). Sedentary lifestyle can be the cause of decreasing muscle strength, range of motion and general soft tissue mobility restrictions and even decrease of proprioception function in the lower extremities (3,4,5). Because of frequent lack of time and motivation it is important to look for quick ways to maintain physical well-being. The aim of the study is to evaluate the short-term effects of neurodynamic and proprioception stimulating exercises for functional indicators of lower extremities in young females with low physical activity levels.

Research methods and organization: The study was approved by Bioethics Center of Lithuanian University of Health Sciences (BEC-SR(M)-122) and took place at the Department of Sports Medicine in Lithuanian University of Health Sciences and "ELi" clinic of physical therapy. The study was carried out from March till October of 2021. The participants were young female adults with low physical activity levels depending on short version of the International Physical Activity Questionier. Subjects were assigned into two groups. One group (ND) of 13 participants, whose age median was 32 (22-44; 32.8) years, performed 7 repetitions of each neurodynamic sliding exercise for sciatic and femoral nerves of the dominant leg and the other group (PC) of 12 participants, whose age median was 32 (26-43; 33.5) years, performed same neurodynamic sliding exercises and additional proprioception stimulation for lower extremities – standing on both legs on unstable surface platform for one minute. Both groups were homogeneous by age, IPAQ score and all of the tests evaluations before intervention (p>0.05). The dominant leg was evaluated by the ball kick test. Dominant leg was chosen for the trial because the study did not evaluate the indicators of lower extremities between the different sides. Evaluation of lower extremity muscle strength was performed with Lafayette Manual Muscle Tester 01165. Lower extremity active range of motion measurements were evaluated with a goniometer. Y balance test was used to evaluate dynamic stability of the lower extremity. All evaluations were performed before intervention and immediately after. Statistical analysis was performed using the "IBM SPSS Statistics 27" software package. The nonparametric Man – Whitney Wilcoxon criteria (U) was applied to the two independent samples. The nonparametric Wilcoxon criteria (Z) was applied for the two dependent samples. Quantitative data of tests results are described by median (Xme), minimum value (Xmin), maximum value (Xmax) and arithmetic mean (m) - Xme (Xmin-Xmax; m). The difference was considered statistically significant when was p<0.05.

**Results.** Active range of motion medians in ND group before the intervention were: straight leg hip flexion 77 (60-88; 74.3)°, hip extension 12 (9-16; 12.1)°, hip external rotation 35 (25-44; 35)° and knee flexion 129 (120-137; 130.1)°. In PC group: straight leg hip flexion 80 (67-87; 77.4)°, hip extension 12 (9-15; 12.2)°, hip external rotation 36.5 (24-44; 34.6)° and knee flexion 133 (125-140; 133.4)°. Immediately after the intervention active range of motion goniometry results in both groups shown statistically significant improvement in active straight leg hip flexion (ND group (Z=-3.187; p=0.001), PC group (Z=-3.071; p=0.002)), hip extension (ND group (Z=-3.256; p=0.001), PC group (Z=-2.762; p=0.006)), hip external rotation (ND group (Z=-2.39; p=0.017), PC group (Z=-2.07;

p=0.038)) and knee flexion (ND group (Z=-3.078; p=0.002), PC group (Z=-2.913; p=0.004)). However, there were no differences in active range of motion results between the groups after the intervention (p>0.05). After muscle strength evaluation, only hip extensors strength has improved immediately after intervention in ND group (Z=-2.521; p=0.012), before the intervention hip extensors strength in ND group was 16.7 (14-19.9; 16.8) kg. In PC group there was strength improvement of knee extensors (Z=-3.062; p=0.002) and hip adductors (Z=-2.752; p=0.006) without difference between groups (U=51.5; p=0.152) and hip extensors (Z=-3.063; p=0.002) with difference between groups (U=34.5; p=0.016) immediately after intervention. Before the intervention knee extensors strength of PC group was 24.5 (17.7-29.2; 24.1) kg, hip adductors 11.5 (9.3-13.6; 11.5) kg, and hip extensors 16.7 (14.5-21.2; 17.4) kg. Dynamic stability results before the intervention were 94.9 (81.2-120.3; 98.2) cm in ND group, and 103.2 (89-117.3; 103.2) cm in PC group. Dynamic stability results improved in the ND group (Z=-3.18; p=0.001) and in the PC group (Z=-2.936; p=0.003) without difference between groups (U=69; p=0.650).

Conclusion. Neurodynamic exercises with and without additional proprioception stimulation can improve lower extremities dynamic stability and active straight leg hip flexion, extension, external rotation and knee flexion range of motion. Additional proprioception stimulation can improve knee extensors and hip adductors strength and can be more effective in improving hip extensors strength than neurodynamic exercises alone immediately after intervention in young females with low physical activity levels.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Helgadóttir B, Forsell Y, Ekblom Ö. Physical activity patterns of people affected by depressive and anxiety disorders as measured by accelerometers: a cross-sectional study. PLoS One. 2015 Jan 13;10(1):e0115894;
- 2. Dankaerts W, O'Sullivan P, Burnett A. Differences in sitting postures are associated with nonspecific chronic low back pain disorders when patients are subclassified. Spine (Phila Pa 1976). 2006 Mar 15;31(6):698-704;
- 3. Campbell EL, Seynnes OR, Bottinelli R, McPhee JS, Atherton PJ, Jones DA, Butler-Browne G, Narici MV. Skeletal muscle adaptations to physical inactivity and subsequent retraining in young men. Biogerontology. 2013 Jun;14(3):247-59.;
- 4. Monti E, Reggiani C, Franchi MV, Toniolo L, Sandri M, Armani A, Zampieri S, Giacomello E, Sarto F, Sirago G, Murgia M, Nogara L, Marcucci L, Ciciliot S, Šimunic B, Pišot R, Narici MV. Neuromuscular junction instability and altered intracellular calcium handling as early determinants of force loss during unloading in humans. The Journal of physiology. 2021 Jun;599(12):3037-3061;
- 5. Boukabache A, Preece SJ, Brookes N. Prolonged sitting and physical inactivity are associated with limited hip extension: A cross-sectional study. Musculoskeletal science & practice. 2021 Feb;51:102282.

#### SCAPULAR DYSKINESIS, DYNAMIC STABILITY OF UPPER EXTREMITY AND GRIP STRENGTH EVALUATION IN MALE BASKETBALL PLAYERS ACCORDING TO AGE AND DOMINANT SIDE

Austėja Miniotaitė, Vidmantas Zaveckas, Laimonas Šiupšinskas Lithuanian University of Helath Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine

**Introduction.** Basketball is an intermittent team sport with frequent transitions between activities performed at different intensities (1). Impaired functions of athlete's kinematic chain lead to dysfunctions and increase the risk of injury (2). Scapula is important in shoulder complex while

throwing a ball as it transfers the force from lower extremities to arms. It is difficult to objectively evaluate scapula due to the position of the shoulder, surrounding muscles and complexity of movements (3). There is a lack of researches analyzing scapular function according age and dominant arm of the throwing athlete. Research aim: to evaluate scapular dyskinesis, dynamic stability and grip strength in male basketball players according to age and dominant side.

Research methods and organization: The study was approved by Lithuanian University of Health Sciences Bioethics Center (Nr BEC-SR(M)-146). All participants or their parents (for adolescent basketball players) signed the informed consent form before taking part in this study. Eleven athletes from national youth basketball team and twelve professional basketball players aged 15 to 30, without any upper extremity injuries in the past 1 year, which have not allowed them to train for 2 weeks, were enrolled to this study. The participants were divided into two groups: adolescent basketball players (n=11) aged 16.09 ( $\pm$ 0.4) years and with 6.55 ( $\pm$ 1.75) years of training period and adult basketball players (n=12) aged 22.17 ( $\pm$ 4.11) and with 9.25 ( $\pm$ 3.23) years of training period.

In order to determine arm dominance, the basketball players were asked to specify the preferred hand to throw a ball. Scapular dyskinesis was evaluated by test described by McClure et al. (2009) (4). The Closed Kinetic Chain Upper Extremity Stability Test (CKCUES) measurements were taken while performing the CKCUES test in order to evaluate upper extremity dynamic stability and proprioception. The grip strength was measured by "Camry " dynamometer in order to confirm whether grip strength is increasing with age. Data was analyzed by using the program SPSS 27.0 and Microsoft Excel for Windows. Non-parametric two independent values were compared with non-parametric Mann-Whitney test, contingency was compared with Fisher's exact test. The results are presented as median (xme), minimum (xmin), maximum (xmax) value and mean  $(\bar{x})$  – xme (xmin – xmax;  $\bar{x}$ ). The difference was considered statistically significant when p < 0.05.

Results. Scapular dyskinesis. Scapular dyskinesis in the dominant arm was detected in 6 adolescent basketball players (54.5 %) and in 3 adult basketball players (25%). Scapular dyskinesis in the nondominant arm was detected in 9 adolescent basketball players (81.8%) and in 6 adult basketball players (50%). No significant differences in scapular dyskinesis display were found in the dominant (p=0.214) and non-dominant (p=0.193) sides between the groups. CKCUES test. The final score of the CKCUES test in adolescent basketball players group was 0.16 (0.13-0.17; 0.15) points, in the group of adult players – 0.18 (0.16-0.21; 0.18) points. Adult basketball players had better upper extremity dynamic stability and proprioception compared to adolescent basketball players (U=115.5, p=0.001). Grip strength. The grip strength of dominant hand in adolescent basketball players was 44.8 (36.5-57.1; 46.54) kg, in the group of adult basketball players – 56.45 (41.8-58.8; 54.1) kg. The grip strength of non-dominant hand in adolescent basketball players was – 44.1 (35.1-55; 45.03) kg, in adult basketball players – 52.2 (38.9-60.1; 51.7) kg. As expected, adult basketball players had greater muscle strength in both dominant (U=109, p=0.007) and non-dominant (U=106, p=0.013) sides than adolescent basketball players. Our findings confirmed that grip strength is increasing with age. There was no significant difference between adolescent and adult basketball players after measuring asymmetry of grip strength of dominant and non-dominant sides (U=57, p=0.608).

**Conclusion.** 1) Adolescent and adult basketball players had similar scapular dyskinesis display in both dominant and non-dominant sides. 2) Adult basketball players had better dynamic upper limb stability and proprioception than adolescent basketball players. 3) Adult basketball players had greater grip strength in both dominant and non-dominant sides than adolescent basketball players.

#### References list:

1. Laver L., Kocaoglu B., Cole B., Arundale AJ., Bytomski J., Amendola A (Eds.). (2020). Basketball Sports Medicine and Science. Springer Nature.

- 2. Oliver GD., Friesen K., Barfield JW., Giordano K., Anz A., Dugas J. (2019). Association of Upper Extremity Pain With Softball Pitching Kinematics and Kinetics. Orthopaedic Journal of Sports Medicine, 7(8), 2325967119865171.
- 3. Kibler W ben., Ludewig PM., McClure PW., Michener LA., Bak K., Sciascia AD. (2013). Clinical implications of scapular dyskinesis in shoulder injury: The 2013 consensus statement from the "scapular summit." British Journal of Sports Medicine, 47(14):877–885.
- 4. Tate, A. R., McClure, P., Kareha, S., Irwin, D., & Barbe, M. F. (2009). A clinical method for identifying scapular dyskinesis, part 2: validity. Journal of athletic training, 44(2), 165-173.

## CHANGES IN LOWER BACK AND PELVIC PAIN AND PSYCHOEMOTIONAL STATUS OF PREGNANT WOMEN USING WATER PHYSIOTHERAPY

#### Elzė Šimašienė, Inesa Rimdeikienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Rehabilitation

**Introduction:** Most studies state that 50 percent of women experience lower back pain [1], pelvic pain occurs in 20 percent of women during pregnancy [2] due to hormonal ligament loosening, changes in pelvic position and posture, as well as severe decrease in physical activity [3]. 10 to 30 percent of women experience depressive symptoms during pregnancy [4, 5]. Conventional physiotherapy often used during pregnancy, but there are advantages of water physiotherapy, which includes easier posture adjustment, reduction of the load on the spine, deep muscle training, and tissue relaxation. Aim of the study. To investigate the changes in the lower back, pelvic pain and psychoemotional state of pregnant women applying water physiotherapy.

Research methods and organization. The research was conducted in July-September 2021 at the Leisure and Wellness Center "Family Welfare Center" in Vilnius. The study included 23 pregnant women 20 to 30 weeks of gestation (at baseline) with lower back and / or pelvic pain. The average age of the subjects was 28 years. The minimum age was 22 years and the maximum was 36 years. The water physiotherapy program lasted for 8 weeks 2 times a week. The exercise began at the swimming pool, with a gradual warm-up that consisted of 8-10 min of walking at different intensities, static stretching of most muscle groups, and joint mobility exercises. Aerobic and strength training exercises were performed for 30 minutes, using an inventory of water exercises - foam weights, water noodles, rubber rings. Finally, 5 minutes for floating on the abdomen, relaxation. The Oswestry Low Back Pain Disability Questionnaire, The Pelvic Girdle Questionnaire, the SF-36 Questionnaire, and a general study of the physical condition using 5 functional tests were used for testing. Functional tests used: Thomas test (to determine flexural contracture of the hip joint), Ober test (to determine shortening of the tensor fasciae latae), quadriceps femoris test (to determine muscle shortening), hamstring test (to determine muscle shortening or tension) and Trendelenburg test (to assess middle gluteal muscle strength). Testing was performed 2 times before and after the water physiotherapy program. SPSS program version 24.0 was used for statistical analysis. The assumption of normality was verified using the Shapiro-Wilk test. Parametric tests were used for variables that met the normality assumption and non-parametric tests were used for those that did not. For the quantitative dependent variables, the parametric Student's paired t-test or the non-parametric Wilkoxon test was used. The McNemar

nonparametric test was also used to compare functional tests before and after physiotherapy. It was considered statistically significant when p < 0.05.

Results. Pelvic pain was assessed using The Pelvic Girdle Questionnaire. The results revealed that the average pelvic pain of the subjects before the physiotherapy program was  $34.72 \pm 14.75$  percent, after the program  $24.12 \pm 11.1$  percent. Overall, the mean decrease was  $10.61 \pm 6.95$  percent, which is a statistically significant difference since p <0.05 (t=7,539; df=22; p<0,001). Before the physiotherapy program, the mean Oswestry disability index was  $28.26 \pm 15.6$  percent and after the program  $17.13 \pm$ 10.75 percent. Overall, the mean Oswestry disability index decreased by  $11.13 \pm 7.58$  percent, a statistically significant difference of p <0.05 (t=7,046; df=22; p<0,001). Restriction of activity due to emotional disorders was  $62.32 \pm 38.01$  points before physiotherapy, and  $88.41 \pm 19.09$  points after physiotherapy. After physiotherapy, the result improved by  $26.09 \pm 38.87$  points, which is a statistically significant difference, as p <0.05 (t=-3,219; df=22; p=0,004). It was found that before physiotherapy the general mental condition was evaluated with  $70.96 \pm 12.31$  points and with  $78.78 \pm$ 11.66 points after. After physiotherapy, there was an improvement of  $7.83 \pm 9.68$ , which is a statistically significant difference, as p <0.05 (t=-3,876; df=22; p=0,001). Before the study Thomas test was positive in 8 subjects and only 4 after the study. A positive Ober test was found in 13 subjects before physiotherapy and in 7 subjects after the study. Shortening of the quadriceps muscle was observed in 4 subjects before physiotherapy and in 3 subjects after. Hamstring shortening was observed in 17 subjects before and in 13 subjects after the program. All of these changes were not statistically significant (p> 0.05). The Trendelenburg test was positive in 12 subjects before the study and only 4 after physiotherapy, and this difference is statistically significant (p < 0.05). This indicates a statistically significant improvement in middle gluteal muscle strength using water physiotherapy.

**Conclusions:** The application of water physiotherapy in pregnancy significantly reduced pelvic pain and physical limitations related to it also the disability caused by back pain among the subjects. Exercise in water statistically significantly improved general psychoemotional state during pregnancy.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Wang S-M, Dezinno P, Maranets I, Berman MR, Caldwell-Andrews AA, Kain ZN. Low back pain during pregnancy. Obstetrics & Gynecology. 2004;104(1):65–70.
- 2. Van De Pol G, Van Brummen HJ, Bruinse HW, Heintz AP, Van Der Vaart CH. Pregnancy-related pelvic girdle pain in the Netherlands. Acta Obstetricia et Gynecologica Scandinavica. 2007;86(4):416–22.
- 3. Casagrande D, Gugala Z, Clark SM, Lindsey RW. Low back pain and pelvic girdle pain in pregnancy. Journal of the American Academy of Orthopaedic Surgeons. 2015;23(9):539–49.
- 4. Loprinzi PD, Fitzgerald EM, Cardinal BJ. Physical activity and depression symptoms among pregnant women from the National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey 2005–2006. Journal of Obstetric, Gynecologic & Neonatal Nursing. 2012;41(2):227–35.
- 5. Perales M, Refoyo I, Coteron J, Bacchi M, Barakat R. Exercise during pregnancy attenuates prenatal depression. Evaluation & the Health Professions. 2014;38(1):59–72.

### PARENTS' ATTITUDES TOWARD THE FACTORS AFFECTING THE PARTICIPATION IN DAILY LIFE OF CHILDREN WITH AUTISM

#### Vaiva Martinkutė, Indrė Bakanienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Children's Rehabilitation

**Introduction.** Autism disorder affects about one in 1,000 children. (1) The main signs of autism are impaired social communication skills and language developmental problems, atypical behavior. (2) An earlier diagnosis can help the child by starting the early intervention, which will reflect in children's health. (3) Healthy children have higher participation in daily life, compared with children with an autism. (4) Participation in daily life is important part of children's life. Therapists should reveal the reasons, why the children's participation in the activities are limited and concentrate on the reasons reduction. The aim of the study: to research parental attitudes toward the factors affecting the participation in daily life of children with autism.

**Research methods and organization.** The study was approved by Research Ethics Committee (No BEC-SR(M)-209). The seven parents – mothers, which have a preschool-aged child with autism spectrum disorder have been selected for the research. The age of childrens' was presented as median (4.5), minimum (3.5), maximum (6.5) value, and mean 4.5(3.5 - 6.5; 4.5). All of the children were boys. The research participants were informed of the research aims and about the necessity of recording the interviews. There has been carried out qualitative research based on the phenomenological study. Each interview consisted of nine general questions followed by in-depth questions helping to better understand a situation. Recorded interviews were transcribed, the statements coded, divided into categories, and later - into subcategories.

The specific research questions that guide this research study are as follows:

- 1. What do your children enjoy most about doing at home?
- 2. What activities at home your child doesn't like?
- 3. How does your child get into unpleasant activities?
- 4. Does your child like to go to kindergarten?
- 5. What activities does your child like to do in kindergarten?
- 6. Are there activities your child does not like in kindergarten?
- 7. Where do you like to go in your free time with your child?
- 8. Do you visit any public institutions with your child? What do you like/dislike about them?
- 9. What difficulties do you present in public institutions? If so, which ones?

Results. Our analysis of parents generated three themes: child issues, parental attitudes, and sensory qualities of the environment. Child issues have been indicated as the broadest category having the biggest amount of statements. Parents were highlighted such problems as challenging behavior, attachment to routine, sensory integration disorder, attention disorder. The most usual challenging behavior was hyperactivity. Talking about parental attitudes, two main problems were incontinence, inner rules of kindergarten, for example, not giving an assistant for children, and exaggerated care. Sensory qualities of the environment theme were divided into environmental lightings, big, sharp noises, and people in the environment. Lightings in the environment usually were too faint and children were started to be scared and running outside. Big noises also were a problem and interfered children from participating in activities, for example, in the kindergarten. Some people sometimes can also interfere, because of their reactions at the local places. It is not motivating parents to take their children with autism disorder to public spaces. Within the categories, there have been discussed

various problems of the kindergarten, other people's reactions, and higher public education about autism spectrum disorder.

**Insights.** 1. Children's participation in activities at home is often hindered by attachment to routine, attention disorder, parental attitudes, challenging behavior, outbursts of anger. 2. Children's participation in activities at kindergarten is often hindered by sensory qualities, attention disorder, inner rules of kindergarten, challenging behavior. 3. Children's participation in activities at the community is often hindered by attaching to routine, parental attitudes, incontinence, challenging behavior.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Mikulėnaitė, L., Ulevičiūtė, R. Ankstyvojo amžiaus vaikų autizmas. 2004 "Viltis" Vilnius.
- 2. Daunoraitė G. Autizmo diagnozę turinčių vaikų dalyvumo lengvinių ir kliuvinių tyrimas. Children, with autism diagnoses, partisipation advantages and disadvantages. 2018 m.
- 3. Prasauskienė A; Vaikų raidos sutrikimai; 2003.
- 4. 1408 Dėl Nacionalinės neįgaliųjų socialinės integracijos 2013–2020 metų programos patvirtinimo. Adresas: https://www.e-tar.lt/portal/lt/legalAct/TAR.46B1FA2B9435

### EFFECTS OF DIFFERENT PHYSIOTHERAPY METHODS ON PAIN INTENSITY AND NECK DISABILITY IN WOMEN WITH TENSION-TYPE HEADACHES

#### Vasarė Kėsaitė, Edita Jazepčikienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Rehabilitation

Introduction. Tension-type headache (TTH) is the most prevalent type of primary headache in adults [1]. The pain is typically pressing or tightening in quality, of mild to moderate intensity and does not worsen with the routine physical activity [2]. TTH affects about one person in five worldwide. TTH is more common in women as compared to men (female-to-male 3 to 1) [3]. Physiotherapy or massage can produce a very quick and effective result, relieving tension in the cervical spine, headaches, relaxing the muscles in the event of excessive tension [4,5]. The aim of the study - to evaluate the effect of different physiotherapy methods on the change of pain intensity and neck disability in women experiencing tension-type headaches.

Research methods and organization. The research was approved by Lithuanian University of Health Sciences Bioethics Center (BEC-SR(M)-73). The study was conducted in 2021 May-August at Plungė district municipality hospital and consulting polyclinic. Twenty-one women (21-41 years old) experiencing tension-type headaches (3-8 points according to VAS) were included in this study. Headache intensity was measured by using Visual Analog Scale (VAS), Neck Disability Index (NDI) was used for measuring self-related disability. Subjects were divided into two experimental groups: neck stretching and isometric exercises (group I, n=11) and neck and shoulder strap stretching exercises with trigger point relaxation (group II, n=10). All subjects had 12 individual physiotherapy sessions, 3 times a week, once a day for 30 minutes. Statistical analysis was performed using SPSS 23 version. The Mann-Whitney test was used to compare two independent samples. The Wilcoxon criterion was used to compare the two dependent samples. Quantitative data were presented as median (Xme), the minimum value (Xmin), the maximum value (Xmax) and the mean (m) – Xme (Xmin-Xmax; m). The significance level was set to 0.05.

Results. Before physiotherapy headache intensity in group I was 6 (5-7; 6.0) points, after physiotherapy – 3 (2-4; 2.8) points. Neck stretching and isometric exercises reduced the intensity of pain in women with TTH from severe to mild (Z=-3.002; p=0.003). Before physiotherapy pain intensity in group II was 6 (5-8; 6.2) points, after physiotherapy – 3.5 (2-5; 3.4) points. Neck and shoulder strap stretching exercises with trigger point relaxation also reduced the intensity of pain in women experiencing TTH from severe to mild (Z=-2.842; p=0.004). After applying different physiotherapy methods, the change in headache intensity was the same in both groups (U=36.5; p=0.197). Before physiotherapy self-related disability in group I was 24 (18-27; 23.5) points, after physiotherapy – 14 (9-18; 13.9) points. Neck stretching and isometric exercises reduced self-related disability in women experiencing TTH from moderate to mild (Z=-2.938, p=0.003). Before physiotherapy self-related disability in group II was 19.4 (14-24; 19.6) points, after physiotherapy – 11 (6-11; 11.1) points. Neck and shoulder strap stretching exercises with trigger point relaxation also reduced self-related disability in women experiencing TTH from moderate to mild (Z=-2.812, p=0.005). However, self-related neck disability in group I and group II differed before the study (U=20; p=0.013), but did not differ after physiotherapy (U=27; p=0.051), i.e. self-related neck disability in group I was higher at the beginning of the study. After applying different physiotherapy methods the change in self-relates neck disability was the same in both study groups (U=36.5; p=0.197).

**Conclusions:** The study showed that both physiotherapy techniques, neck stretching and isometric exercise vs neck and shoulder strap stretching exercises with trigger point relaxation, had similar effects on tension-type headache intensity and neck disability.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Jiang W, Li Z, Wei N, Chang W, Chen W, Sui HJ. Effectiveness of physical therapy on the suboccipital area of patients with tension-type headache: A meta-analysis of randomized controlled trials. Medicine (Baltimore). 2019;98(19):e15487. doi:10.1097/MD.0000000000015487.
- 2. Chowdhury D. Tension type headache. Ann Indian Acad Neurol. 2012;15(Suppl 1):S83-S88. doi:10.4103/0972-2327.100023.
- 3. Derry S, Wiffen PJ, Moore RA, Bendtsen L. Ibuprofen for acute treatment of episodic tension-type headache in adults. Cochrane Database Syst Rev. 2015;2015(7):CD011474. doi:10.1002/14651858.CD011474.pub2.
- 4. Fernández-De-Las-Peñas C, Arendt-Nielsen L. Improving understanding of trigger points and widespread pressure pain sensitivity in tension-type headache patients: clinical implications. Expert Rev Neurother.2017;17(9):933-939. doi:10.1080/14737175.2017.1359088.
- 5. Damapong, P, Kanchanakhan, N, & Eungpinichpong, W. A randomized controlled trial on the effectiveness of court-type traditional Thai massage versus amitriptyline in patients with chronic tension-type headache. Evidence-based complementary and alternative medicine. 2015; 2015: 930175. doi:10.1155/2015/930175

## THE EFFECTS OF DIFFERENTIAL LEARNING ON INDIVIDUALS WHO HAVE UNDERGONE BRAIN TUMOR SURGERY AND THE ASSESSMENT OF PERSONAL MOTIVATION ON POSTURE MANAGEMENT

#### Laura Aslam, Eglė Lendraitienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Rehabilitation

**Introduction.** According to the Institute of Hygiene, 262 people died of brain tumor in Lithuania in 2020 [1]. The most common disorders are cognitive, balance, gait, vision impairments and fatigue.

Impaired balance increases the risk of falls causing psychological disorders [2]. Researchers are still trying to figure out new methods that would be more effective for patients which undergo brain tumor surgery. One of such methods could be differential learning, which is relatively new in rehabilitation, but proven to be effective in professional sports [3]. Aim. To evaluate the effects of differential learning and the changes in personal motivation for managing body position in individuals diagnosed with a brain tumor.

Research methods and organization. The study was carried out in the hospital of Lithuanian University of Health sciences "Kaunas Clinics". 30 patients diagnosed with brain tumor and undergone brain tumor surgery participated in the study, 16 women and 14 men. Selection criteria: 1. Age of subjects 40-74; 2. Diagnosed with brain tumor (malignant / benign / primary / secondary); 3. Able to walk without aids 4. Voluntary consent to participate in the study. Participants were assigned to three groups of 10 patients per group. First study group of 5 women and 5 men had physical therapy for 5 days based on differential learning. Second study group of 5 women and 5 men had the same exercise program for 5 days paired with music listening after exercise for 3min. Third study group of 6 women and 4 men had traditional physiotherapy on balance pad for 5 days paired with music listening after exercise for 3min. Assessment of age confirmed homogeneity between groups (γ2 =30; p=0.466). Methods of examination: 1. Timed up and go test; 2. Modified Clinical Test of Sensory Interaction in Balance; 3. Fullerton Advanced Balance Scale; 4. Recovery Locus of Control Scale. Statistical analysis was performed using IBM SPSS Statistics 27 software package. Chi-squared test was used to test homogeneity of variance, Kruskal-Wallis H test was used for three independent samples, Wilcoxon test was used to compare two dependent samples and Mann-Whitney U test was used for two independent samples as a post-hoc analysis. The result is statistically significant, by the standards of the study, when  $p \le 0.05$ .

**Results.** First study group (differential learning) had a statistically significant improvement in balance (non-vestibular, vestibular) and functional mobility by assessing Timed up and go test (Z=-2.803; p=0.005), postural control, by assessing Modified Clinical Test of Sensory Interaction in Balance (Z=-2.201; p=0.028). Statistically significant improvement was also observed in balance (non-vestibular) by assessing Fullerton Advanced Balance Scale (Z=-2.675; p=0.007).

Second study group (differential learning and music) had a statistically significant improvement in balance (non-vestibular, vestibular) and functional mobility by assessing Timed up and go test (Z=2.809; p=0.005) and improvement in balance (non-vestibular) was observed in Fullerton Advanced Balance Scale (Z=-22.546; p=0.011).

Third study group (traditional physiotherapy and music) had a statistically significant improvement in balance (non-vestibular, vestibular) and functional mobility by assessing Timed up and go test (Z=2.803; p=0.005), postural control, by assessing Modified Clinical Test of Sensory Interaction in Balance (Z=-2.533; p=0.011). Statistically significant improvement was also observed in balance (non-vestibular) by assessing Fullerton Advanced Balance Scale (Z=-2.816; p=0.005).

Modified Clinical Test of Sensory Interaction in Balance results were significantly better in the differential learning group compared to the traditional physiotherapy and music group (U=-2.048; p=0.041). Improvements of Modified Clinical Test of Sensory Interaction in Balance were also significantly better in differential learning and music group compared to traditional physiotherapy and music (U=-2.133; p=0.033). No difference in Modified Clinical Test of Sensory Interaction in Balance were observed compared between differential learning and differential learning and music groups.

No difference in Recovery Locus of Control Scale in evaluation of motivation was observed between all study groups (H(2)=3.209; p=0.201).

**Conclusions:** Differential learning itself and differential learning paired with listening to music for 3 minutes after exercise, was more effective than traditional physiotherapy program paired with listening to music for 3 minutes after exercise on the recovery of postural control management function under various sensory conditions in patients after brain tumor surgery.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Higienos instituto Sveikatos informacijos centras Health Information Centre of Institute of Hygiene Mirties priežastys. [cited 2021 Nov 14]; Available from: www.hi.lt
- 2. Hammill K, Stewart CG, Kosic N, Bellamy L, Irvine H, Hutley D, et al. Exploring the impact of brain cancer on people and their participation. 2018 Sep 13 [cited 2021 Nov 14];82(3):162–9.
- **3.** Tassignon B, Verschueren J, Baeyens JP, Benjaminse A, Gokeler A, Serrien B, et al. An Exploratory Meta-Analytic Review on the Empirical Evidence of Differential Learning as an Enhanced Motor Learning Method. Frontiers in Psychology. 2021 May 7;12:1186.

### THE EFFECT OF NEUROMUSCULAR TRAINING PROGRAM ON FUNCTIONAL CHARACTERISTICS OF UPPER EXTREMITY IN HANDBALL AND BASKETBALL PLAYERS

#### Eglė Laurinavičiūtė, Laimonas Šiupšinskas

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine

**Introduction.** Basketball and handball are physically demanding team sports and are characterized by intense activities including running, sprinting, jumping, ball throwing, blocking and pushing between players (1,2). Interest in basketball and handball is growing annually, and injury rates are very high in comparison with other professional Olympic team sports (3). Neuromuscular training is a multi-intervention program with a combination of muscle strength, balance, plyometric, stability and sport-specific exercises to improve neuromuscular control and to reduce risk of injury (4). Research aim: To evaluate the effect of neuromuscular training program on functional characteristics of handball and basketball players.

Research methods and organization. The study was approved by Research Ethics Committee (Nr. BEC-SR (M)- 162). All participants signed the informed consent form before taking part in this study. Fifteen professional male basketball players and sixteen professional male handball players aged 20 – 35, without any upper extremity injuries in the past 1 year, without any musculoskeletal pain, and with a minimum of 10 years of training period, participated in the study. Neuromuscular training (NMT) was conducted 3 times a week with sessions lasting 30 minutes, for the period of one month. The program consisted of proprioception-enhancing exercises, plyometric exercises, rotator cuff muscle-strengthening exercises, scapular stabilization exercises, proprioceptive neuromuscular facilitation (PNF) D2 exercises for the upper extremities, and rhythmic stabilization exercises. The exercises were performed after a warm-up, before the main part of the training. Participants were evaluated before and after neuromuscular training program. Scapular dyskinesis was evaluated by tests, described by McClure et. al. (2009). For upper extremity dynamic stability measurement, The Closed Kinetic Chain Upper Extremity Stability Test (CKCUEST) was used. Upper extremity muscle strength was evaluated with Seated Medicine Ball Throw Test (SMBTT). Data was analyzed by using the program SPSS 27.0. Non-parametric dependent values were compared with Wilcoxon test. Two independent values were

compared with non-parametric Mann-Whitney test. Quantitative data results are presented as median (xme), minimum (xmin), maximum (xmax) value and mean  $(\bar{x})$  – xme (xmin – xmax;  $\bar{x}$ ). Qualitative data were compared by using McNemar's Chi-squared test, and the data were presented as percentages. The difference was considered statistically significant when p < 0.05.

Results. Scapular dyskinesis. Handball players: scapular dyskinesis display decreased in the dominant  $(\chi^2=6,32; p=0,012)$  and in the non-dominant arm  $(\chi^2=4,15; p=0,042)$  after NMT. Before NMT, scapular dyskinesis in the dominant arm was detected in 7 players (43.8%) and after NMT, in 5 players (31.3%). In the non-dominant arm before NMT, 7 players had scapular dyskinesis (43.8%), and after NMT, 4 players (25%). Basketball players: scapular dyskinesis display decreased in the dominant arm after NMT ( $\chi^2$ =4,18; p=0,041), but not in the non-dominant arm ( $\chi^2$ =0,744; p=0,388). Before NMT, scapular dyskinesis in the dominant arm was detected in 9 players (60%), and after NMT, in 6 players (40%). In the non-dominant arm, 13 players (86.7%) had scapular dyskinesis before NMT, compared to 8 players (53.3%) after NMT. No statistically significant differences were found in scapular dyskinesis display in the dominant arm between basketball players and handball players before and after NMT. Non-dominant arm scapular dyskinesis display among basketball players occurred more handball players before NMT ( $\chi^2=4,495$ ; p=0,034), but no statistically significant differences were found between groups after NMT. Closed kinetic chain upper extremity stability test. There were increases in handball players (Z=-3,559; p<0,001) and in basketball players (Z=-3,508; p<0,001) dynamic stability after NMT. No statistically significant differences between the groups were found before NMT, but after NMT handball players CKCUEST test score was higher than basketball players (U=61; p=0,019). Seated Medicine Ball Throw Test. Upper extremity strength increasement was found in both handball players (Z=-3,508; p=0,001) and basketball players (Z=-3,351; p=0,001) after NMT. Comparing results between the groups, basketball players SMBTT results were higher than handball players before (U=19; p<0.001) and after NMT (U=21; p<0.001).

Conclusions: 1) Neuromuscular training program decreased scapular dyskinesis display in handball players in both arms, and in basketball players, in the dominant arm. 2) Neuromuscular training program improved upper extremity dynamic stability and muscle strength in handball and basketball players. 3) Handball players had better upper extremity stability after the neuromuscular training program. 4) Muscle strength was higher in basketball players before and after neuromuscular training.

#### References list:

- 1. Vázquez-Guerrero J., Jones B., Fernández-Valdés B., Moras G., Reche X., Sampaio J. (2019). Physical demands of elite basketball during an official U18 international tournament. Journal of sports sciences, 37(22), 2530-2537.
- 2. Ortega-Becerra M., Pareja-Blanco F., Jiménez-Reyes P., Cuadrado-Peñafiel V., González-Badillo JJ. (2018). Determinant factors of physical performance and specific throwing in handball players of different ages. The Journal of Strength & Conditioning Research, 32(6), 1778-1786.
- 3. Szymski D., Achenbach L., Krutsch V., Alt V., Meffert R., Krutsch W. Fehske K. (2021). Injury epidemiology in men's professional team sports: is media analysis helpful?. Archives of orthopaedic and trauma surgery, 141(4), 655-661.
- 4. Laver L., Kocaoglu B., Cole B., Arundale AJ., Bytomski J., Amendola A. (Eds.). (2020). Basketball Sports Medicine and Science. Springer Nature.

# EFFICIENCY OF DYNAMIC NEUROMUSCULAR STABILIZATION AND TRANSCUTANEOUS ELECTRICAL NERVE STIMULATION ON BACK PAIN AND TRUNK MUSCLE ENDURANCE IN MIDDLE-AGED AND OLDER ADULTS

#### Skirmantė Danytė, Vilma Dudonienė

Lithuanian Sports University, Department of Applied Biology and Rehabilitation, Kaunas, Lithuania

**Introduction.** Back pain is common named as a dysfunction, inherent in modern society. Back pain affects our population, most based on their age [1]. The treatment of back pain includes physiotherapy, which relieve pain, improve strength, and lastly improve functional status [2]. Back pain caused by intervertebral disc degeneration is suppressed in a variety of ways, including dynamic neuromuscular stabilization and transcutaneous electrical stimulation. Supposedly, that transcutaneous stimulation and dynamic stabilization affect intensity of the pain and muscles endurance. The purpose of this study was to determine the efficiency after 4- and 8-weeks of dynamic neuromuscular stabilization and transcutaneous electrical nerve stimulation on back pain and trunk muscle endurance in middle-aged and older adults.

Research methods and organization. The study was approved by research bioethics committee (Nr. MNL-KIN(M)-2020-310). All participants signed the informed consent form before taking part in this study. A total 40 participants, divided into two groups (middle-aged (n=22) and older (n=18) adults), participated in an 8-week dynamic neuromuscular stabilization and transcutaneous electrical nerve stimulation program. The I group consists of 13 females and 9 males (mean age 34,27±7,81; BMI -23,88±2,29) and II group consists of 12 females and 6 males (mean age 55,28±5,86; BMI -24,93±1,89) with intervertebral disc degeneration, Heart Rate Variability in the norm range, without neurological symptoms, comorbidities, or spinal surgeries. Participants in both groups performed the same program two or three times weekly. Pain intensity before the intervention, after 4 and 8 weeks was evaluated by using numerical rating scale (NRS). Tests of trunk muscle endurance evaluate the trunk extensors, flexors, and lateral musculature of the trunk. The assessment tests were performed before, after 4 and 8 weeks each of the phase. Dynamic stabilization and transcutaneous stimulation instructions were given before starting interventions. Data was analyzed by using the program SPSS 28.0 and Microsoft Excel 2012. Non-parametric dependent values were compared with Wilcoxon test, and two independent values were compared with non-parametric Mann-Whitney U test. The results are presented as average and standard deviation (SD). The difference was considered statistically significant when p<0.05.

**Results.** Pain intensity. There was significant decrease in I group after 4 (Z=-3.169) and 8 (Z=-4.192) weeks intervention (p<0.05). Results in II group statistically significantly decreased after 4 (Z=-3.357) and 8 (Z=-3.810) weeks intervention (p<0.05). There were significant differences pre (U=-2.591), after 4 (U=-3.182) and 8 (U=-2.494) weeks intervention in between groups (p<0.05). Trunk muscles endurance. The back muscles endurance statistically significant increase after 4 (Z=-2.2360 and 8 (Z=-3.557) weeks intervention in I group (p<0.05). Results in II group statistically significantly increased after 4 (Z=-3.317) and 8 (Z=-4.025) weeks intervention (p<0.05). There were significant differences pre (U=-4.608), after 4 (U=-3.902) and 8 (U=-4.571) weeks intervention in between groups (p<0.05). The abdominal muscles endurance statistically significant increase after 4 (Z=-2.828) and 8 (Z=-4.123) weeks intervention in I group (p<0.05). Results in II group statistically significantly increased after 4 (Z=-2.449) and 8 (Z=-3.819) weeks intervention (p<0.05). There were significant differences pre (U=-2.449) and 8 (Z=-3.819) weeks intervention (p<0.05). There were significant differences pre (U=-2.449) and 8 (Z=-3.819) weeks intervention (p<0.05). There were significant differences pre (U=-2.449) and 8 (Z=-3.819) weeks intervention (p<0.05). There were significant differences pre (U=-2.449) and 8 (Z=-3.819) weeks intervention (p<0.05). There were significant differences pre (U=-2.449) and 8 (Z=-3.819) weeks intervention (p<0.05). There were significant differences pre (U=-2.449) and 8 (Z=-3.819) weeks intervention (p<0.05).

2.449) and after 4 (U=-2.930) weeks intervention in between groups (p<0.05). The right-side bridge endurance statistically significant increase after 4 (Z=-3.000) and 8 (Z=-4.146) weeks intervention in I group (p<0.05). Results in II group statistically significantly increased after 4 (Z=-2.646) and 8 (Z=3.557) weeks intervention (p<0.05). There were significant differences pre (U=-3.357), after 4 (U=-3.685) and 8 (U=-3.767) weeks intervention in between groups (p<0.05). The left-side bridge endurance statistically significant increase after 4 (Z=-3.317) and 8 (Z=-3.900) weeks intervention in I group (p<0.05). Results in II group statistically significantly increased after 4 (Z=-2.828) and 8 (Z=-4.001) weeks intervention (p<0.05). There were significant differences pre (U=-4.243), after 4 (U=-4.234) and 8 (U=-3.574) weeks intervention in between groups (p<0.05).

Conclusions: 1) Dynamic stabilization and transcutaneous stimulation are effective in reducing pain and increasing trunk muscles endurance after 4-weeks intervention in middle-aged adults. 2) Dynamic stabilization and transcutaneous stimulation are effective in reducing pain and increasing trunk muscles endurance after 8-weeks intervention in older adults. 3) Dynamic stabilization and transcutaneous stimulation are more effective in reducing pain and increasing trunk muscles endurance in older adults.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Frost, B. A., Camarero-Espinosa, S., & Foster, E. J. Materials for the spine: anatomy, problems, and solutions. Materials. 2019;12(2), 1-41.
- 2. Brosseau, L., Milne, S., Robinson, V., Marchand, S., Shea, B., Wells, G., & Tugwell, P. Efficacy of the transcutaneous electrical nerve stimulation for the treatment of chronic low back pain: a meta-analysis. Spine. 2002;27(6), 596-603.

### DOES PHYSICAL EXERCISES MAKE A DIFFERENCE FOR RISK OF FALLING AND INDEPENDENCE OF THE ELDERLY?

#### Mindaugas Karvelis, Agnė Slapšinskaitė-Dackevičienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine

**Introduction.** Human life expectancy has been increasing at a rapid rate [1]. Generally, increased life expectancy has further increased the risk of disease, falls and fall-related injuries [2,3]. Novel interventions such as differential learning method should therefore be tested looking at its potential to improve quality of life among elderly. Current evidence indicates that differential learning allow participant to find individual performance repertoire in order to perform and adapt its complex motor skills in everyday life [4]. Primary aim of current study was twofold - to evaluate physical exercises adjusted on classical and differential learning methods for risk of falls and compare intervention impact on independence of the elderly.

Research methods and organization. Ethical approval was obtained by the local bioethics center (No. BEC-SR(M) – 176). Study was performed during the period from 03/07/2021 to 28/08/2021. The study included 24 participants (age  $68.83 \pm 3.37$  years). All participants that were involved in the study signed an informed consent. The main reason for meeting the inclusion criteria was being 60 - 75-year-old, Morse's fall risk scale over 25 points and, Mini mental state test up to 18 points. Participants were randomly divided into two groups – Regular exercises group ((RG), included 11 participants aged  $68.36 \pm 3.17$  years) and differential learning group ((DG), included 13 participants aged  $69.23 \pm 3.61$  years). RG group had individual regular physical exercises program, and DG group, had physical exercise program based on differential learning. Both groups, in total had 20 sessions (each being 25 -

35 minutes long), 5 times per week (excluding weekends), for 4 weeks. Before and after both programs risk of falling was evaluated through Berg balance, Fukuda stepping, stand-and-go, tandem tests while dynamics of independence were measured with functional independence test and instrumental daily activity questionnaire. The data were analysed using IBM SPSS Statistics (Armonk, NY: IBM Corp, USA), version 27. A non-parametric Wilcoxon test was used to compare the two dependent samples. The Mann-Whitney U test was run to compare the test scores of two independent samples. Data were presented as the median (me), the minimal value (min), maximal value (max) and the mean – me (min; max; mean). The significance level was set at p < 0.05.

Results. Results of Berg balance test. Before physical exercise program RG group results were 34 (32; 40; 34.27) points, after the regular program they were 42 (40; 45; 42.55) points. Therefore, there were a statistically significant difference before and after the program in RG group (Z=-2.969; p=0.003). Initial DG groups results were 34 (31; 40; 34) points, and after the program it reached 47 (44; 50; 46.61) points. Thus, DG groups results also showed a statistically significant difference (Z=-3.192; p=0.001). We found no statistically significant difference between the RG and DG groups results before the exercise programs (U=64.50; p=0.691). Although after the exercise programs there was a statistically significant difference between both groups (U=5.00; p=0.001). Fukuda stepping test results. Baseline results of RG group results were 46 (43; 49; 45.91) degrees. After intervention test results dropped till 34 (30; 36; 33.27) degrees and revealed statistically significant difference (Z=-2.937; p=0.003). DG test results at baseline were 44 (36; 51; 43.85) degrees and after the physical exercises program based on differential learning results decreased to 30 (26; 38; 30.62) degrees. DG results revealed statistically significant difference (Z=-3.186; p=0.001). Hence, there was no statistically significant difference among the RG and DG groups before the applied programs (U=50; p=0.228), but after the exercised programs among the RG and DG groups we found a statistically significant difference (U=30.50; p=0.010).

**Conclusions:** This study showed the differences between physical exercises adjusted on classical and differential learning methods proved to improve results for elderly people's risk of falling prevention. Among the groups, better results were seen in DG.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Cuevas-Trisan R. Balance Problems and Fall Risks in the Elderly. Phys Med Rehabil Clin N Am. 2017 Nov;28(4):727-737. doi: 10.1016/j.pmr.2017.06.006. PMID: 29031339.
- 2. Sherrington C, Michaleff ZA, Fairhall N, Paul SS, Tiedemann A, Whitney J, Cumming RG, Herbert RD, Close JCT, Lord SR. Exercise to Prevent Falls in Older Adults: an updated systematic review and meta-analysis. Br J Sports Med. 2017 Dec;51(24):1750-1758. doi: 10.1136/bjsports-2016-096547. Epub 2016 Oct 4. PMID: 27707740.
- 3. Eudave L, Aznárez-Sanado M, Luis EO, Martínez M, Fernández-Seara MA, Pastor MA. Motor Sequence Learning in the Elderly: Differential Activity Patterns as a Function of Hand Modality. Brain Imaging Behav. 2017 Aug;11(4):986-997. doi: 10.1007/s11682-016-9569-7. PMID: 27444732
- 4. Schmidt M, Kemena M, Jaitner T. Null Effects of Different Amounts of Task Variation in Both Contextual Interference and Differential Learning Paradigms. Percept Mot Skills. 2021 Aug;128(4):1836-1850. doi: 10.1177/00315125211022302. Epub 2021 Jun 2. PMID: 34078209.

### THE IMPACT OF RED-S ON THE MENTAL AND PHYSICAL HEALTH OF ATHLETES

#### Rūta Čiurlionytė, Renata Žumbakytė-Šermukšnienė, Miglė Baranauskaitė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine

**Introduction.** The International Olympic Committee expert working group introduces a broader, more comprehensive term for the condition previously known as 'Female Athlete Triad'. The term 'Relative Energy Deficiency in Sport' (RED-S), points to the complexity involved and the fact that male athletes are also affected (1). It is a syndrome of impaired physiological function of the reproductive, gastrointestinal, cardiovascular, metabolic, psychological, skeletal and immunological systems underpinned by low energy availability (2). Recent studies have investigated the prevalence of low energy availability in various sports. Prevalence ranges from 22% to 58% (3). Research aim – to evaluate the impact of RED-S on the mental and physical health of athletes.

Research methods and organization. The study was performed in Lithuanian Sports Center, Department of Sports Medicine and Kaunas Department of Sports Medicine. The examination included 10 young male athletes with RED-S syndrome. The age of the subjects ranged from 17 to 24 years. Inclusion criteria: athletes engaged in active physical activity. Body weight components were evaluated using Body Composition Analyser (IOI353). Daily energy balance of athletes was calculated using energy balance equation (energy balance = energy input – energy output). Muscle strength was evaluated with 01165 Lafayette Manual Muscle Tester. For mental health evaluation the International Olympic Committee Sport Mental Health Assessment Tool 1 (SMHAT-1) was used. Statistical data analysis was performed using SPSS (Statistical Package for Social Sciences) 27.0. The results are presented as median (xme), minimum (xmin), maximum (xmax) value and mean ( $\bar{x}$ ) – xme (xmin – xmax;  $\bar{x}$ ). The Spearman correlation coefficient (r) was calculated to determine the relationships between the quantitative variables. Differences with p <0.05 were considered statistically significant.

**Results.** The median of recommended daily caloric intake for research participants with high energy output was 3355 (2751-3854; 3330) kcal. The results show that the body fat mass median of subjects was 14.5 (5.7-22; 15.25) %, The results of the survey on how many calories are consumed during different physical activities were: during purposeful physical activity for at least 2 hours a day, the median was 2300 (2000-2750; 2365) kcal. Without engaging in purposeful physical activity - 2425 (2000-3000; 2435) kcal. Using the energy balance equation, a daily caloric deficit - 975 (650-1351; 964.9) kcal was calculated. Analysing the results obtained by all respondents 60% (n = 6) of subjects have certain psychological disorders or symptoms. The remaining 40% (n = 4) did not show psychological disorders or symptoms and did not require further action. Assessing the anxiety felt by athletes, results show that out of 100% (n = 10) the questionnaire did not need to be filled in by 40% (n = 4) of participant, due to unexpressed psychological symptoms, 10% (n = 1) did not feel anxiety and minor anxiety was observed in 50% (n = 5) of subjects. There was a statistically significant strong positive relationship between sleep quality and other psychological factors: psychological disorders (r = 0.913; p <0.001), anxiety (r = 0.943; p <0.001) and symptoms of depression (r = 0.913; p <0.001).

Conclusions: RED-S has a greater impact on athletes mental health than physical. Body fat mass norms were met by 30% of subjects and 70% did not comply with in the rate. 6 out of 10 participants experience certain psychological symptoms. The lower the quality of sleep, the more and faster psychological disorders and anxiety are felt, subjects are more likely to experience depressive symptoms.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Mountjoy M, Sundgot-Borgen J, Burke L, et al. The IOC consensus statement: beyond the Female Athlete Triad—Relative Energy Deficiency in Sport (RED-S) British Journal of Sports Medicine 2014; 48:491-497.
- 2. Rogers MA, Appaneal RN, Hughes D, et al. Prevalence of impaired physiological function consistent with Relative Energy Deficiency in Sport (RED-S): an Australian elite and pre-elite cohort. British Journal of Sports Medicine 2021; 55:38-45.
- 3. Logue DM, Madigan SM, Melin A, Delahunt E, Heinen M, Donnell SM, Corish CA. Low Energy Availability in Athletes 2020: An Updated Narrative Review of Prevalence, Risk, Within-Day Energy Balance, Knowledge, and Impact on Sports Performance. Nutrients. 2020 Mar 20; 12(3):835. doi: 10.3390/nu12030835. PMID: 32245088.

### BALANCE, GAIT, RISK OF FALLS, UPPER EXTREMITIES TREMOR AND QUALITY OF LIFE CHANGES THROUGH DIFFERENT BALANCE AND GAIT PROGRAMS FOR PEOPLE WITH PARKINSON'S DISEASE

#### Edmantas Rėkus, Eglė Lendraitienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Rehabilitation

**Introduction.** Parkinson's disease is a progressive disorder that affects patients quality of life. Physiotherapy is an excellent component to pharmacological therapy (1) and many training progarms are possible for people with Parkinson's. So far balance and gait exercises are the most commonly observed. Single or dual-task gait exercises of varying difficulty can improve patients' physical performance, reduce the risk of falls, and improve their quality of life. Balance exercises both on a stable base and on unstable base could lead to Parkinson's disease progresion reduction (2, 3, 4, 5, 6). The aim of this study is to evaluate the effectiveness of different balance and gait programs for Patients with Parkinson's disease.

Research methods and organization. 20 people with diagnosed Parkinson's disease and also members of Kaunas Parkinson's Disease Society were included in this study. The research was approved by Lithuanian University of Health Science Bioethics Center (BEC-SR(M)-53). The study was performed during the period from 01/09/2021 to 01/11/2021. A total of 8 sessions were performed for each study group and physiotherapy procedures lasted 1 hour for each case. 6 males and 14 females were the subjects of this study and the age of participants were between 60 and 90 years (72.8±6.79). Cases were randomly divided into two groups of 10 subjects. Selection criteria: 1. People with Parkinson's disease who are at least 60 years old and not older than 90 years; 2. People who are able to control the torso, upper and lower limbs independently. Exclusion criteria: 1. People who refused to participate in the study; 2. Acute conditions/diseases; 3. Disease stage 4 and 5 (according to the Hoehn and Yahr scale). The first group of subjects performed balance exercises on a stable base and single task gait exercises on the special feets, and the second group did balance exercises on unstable planes and dual gait exercises on special feets. Before and after the procedures, all cases were assessed for balance and gait by the Tinetti test, the risk of falls was evaluated by the dynamic gait index and timed up and go test, the upper limbs tremor was assessed by a special mobile phone application, and the quality of life before and after the study was recorded with 39 Parkinson's disease questionnaire (part of the evaluation of mobility and daily activities). Statistical analysis was done using "IBM SPSS Statistics 27". Differences were considered statistically significant at p<0.05. The study used statistical

methods, such as: 1. Wilcoxon criteria for two dependant samples; 2. Mann-Witney U test for two independant samples; 3. Spearman correlation coefficient was applied to search for correlations.

**Results.** First patient group included in the study had a statistically significant improvement of gait by evaluating results of Tinetti gait test (Z=-2.070; p=0.038). Also the second group of patients had statistically significant improvement of gait, using the same test (Z=-2.714; p=0.007). Statistically significant improvement of balance was observed by Tinetti balance test. After the test, first group of cases had statistically significant improvement on balance (Z=-2.449; p=0.014), also the second group of patients had statistical improvement of the same test (Z=-2.428; p=0.015). There were also statistically significant results on risk of falls: first group dynamic gait index results was (Z=-2.111; p=0.035) and the second group (Z=-2.309; p=0.021). First group of participants up and go test results (Z=-2.090; p=0.037) and the second (Z=-2.703; p=0.007). There were statistically significant results of right upper limb tremor strength. First (Z=-2.599; p=0.009) and the second (Z=-2.701; p=0.007) group results showed statistically significant change of right extremity tremor strength. After the study there were a statistically significant changes of right extremity tremor strength between the groups (U=22.000; p=0.035). Left upper extremity tremor strength outcomes after the procedures also shown statistically significant improvement. First (Z=-2.803; p=0.005) and the second (Z=-2.293; p=0.022) group of cases left extremity tremor strength results also revealed statistically significant changes.

**Conclusions.** The single task on a stable platform program and double task on unstable platform program improved patients gait and balance, reduced upper extremities tremor strength and risk of falls in both groups of Parkinson's disease patients. There were no significant improvement between the groups except right upper limb tremor strength.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Armstrong M J, Okun M S. Diagnosis and Treatment of Parkinson DiseaseA Review. JAMA. 2020 Feb 11; 323(6):548-560.
- 2. Yitayeh A, Teshome A. The effectiveness of physiotherapy treatment on balance dysfunction and postural instability in persons with Parkinson's disease: a systematic review and meta-analysis. BMC Sports Science, Medicine and Rehabilitation. 2016; 8(17).
- 3. Maslivec A, Fielding A, Wilson M, Norris M, Young W. 'Recoupling' the attentional and motor control of preparatory postural adjustments to overcome freezing of gait in Parkinson's. J Neuroeng Rehabil. 2020 Oct 31; 17: 146.
- 4. Heinzel S, Maechtel M, Hasmann SE, Hobert MA, Heger T, Berg D ir kt. Motor dual-tasking deficits predict falls in Parkinson's disease: A prospective study. Parkinsonism and Related Disorders. 2016 May; 26: 73-77.
- 5. Kluger BM, Miyasaki J, Katz M, Galifianakis N, Hall K, Pantilat S ir kt. Comparison of Integrated Outpatient Palliative Care With Standard Care in Patients With Parkinson Disease and Related Disorders. JAMA Neurol. 2020;77(5):551-560.
- 6. Claudia B, Debû ME, Bastiaan BB, Ursulla FM. The Practicalities of Assessing Freezing of Gait. Journal of Parkinson's Disease. 2016 Oct 19; 6(4): 667-674.

## EVALUATION OF FUNCTIONAL MUSCLE STRENGTH, BALANCE AND MOTIVATION IN PATIENTS WITH PARKINSON'S DISEASE AFTER USING A LONG-TERM PHYSIOTHERAPY PROGRAM

Karolina Ažukaitė, Eglė Lendraitienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Rehabilitation

**Introduction.** Parkinson's disease is the second most common chronic neurodegenerative disease after Alzheimer's disease (1). In addition to pharmacotherapy and neurosurgical treatment, physiotherapy aims to improve a number of disorders associated with Parkinson's disease, including problems with physical capacity, functional muscle strength, balance and gait, increased risk of collapse, and lack of motivation (2). Studies confirm that regular exercise may lead to better function and quality of life and slower progression of the disease (3). The aim of the paper is to evaluate changes in functional muscle strength, balance, and motivation in patients with Parkinson's disease using a long-term physiotherapy program.

Research methods and organization. The reaserch was carried with Kaunas Parkinson's Disease Society patients at home-based from 2021.03.01 to 2021.09.01. The study included 16 subjects (11 – female, 5 - male), the mean age of the subjects was 72.62±7.04 years. Criteria for selection of subjects: adults diagnosed with Parkinson's disease; persons aged 55-90; stages I – III of Parkinson's disease were determined based on a modified Hoehn and Yahr Staging Scale. Exclusion criteria: people who refused to participate in the study; acute conditions/diseases; disease stage 4 and 5 (according to the Hoehn and Yahr scale). Physiotherapy was applied 2-3 times/week, the duration of one session was about 45 minutes. The patients were assessed using functional muscle strength which was determined by scores - assessment of neck extensor muscle strength, neck rotation muscle strength assessment, lumbar trunk muscle strength assessment and trunk muscle strength (concentric and eccentric muscle contraction), arm retraction and flexion, shoulder rotation force. The balance was assessed with the Functional reach test, Timed Up and Go test, Tinetti balance and walking test and Berg balance test. The motivation of patients recovery was assessed with the Recovery locus of control questionnaire. Statistical analysis of the data was performed using IBM SPSS (Armonk, NY: IBM The samples studied are small, so nonparametric criteria were used to Corp, USA) 27.0 software. compare dependent samples. Quantitative-dependent variables were subjected to a nonparametric paired Wilkoxon test and data were presented as median (Xme), minimum value (Xmin), maximum value (Xmax), and mean (x) Xme (Xmin; Xmax; x). A Spearman correlation coefficient was applied to search for correlations. There were statistically significant differences at p<0.05.

**Results.** The results of the neck extensor muscle strength was 3.00 (1; 4; 2.56) points, and after the physiotherapy program, the subjects evaluation score was 3.00 (2; 4; 3.12) points. After physiotherapy, the assessment of the strength of the neck muscles improved statistically significantly, p<0.05 (Z=-3.00; p=0.003). Analyzing the results of the neck rotating muscle strength, it was found that the result before the physiotherapy program was 2.5 (2; 3; 2.50) points, after the physiotherapy program the result was better 3.0 (2; 4; 3.00) points, (Z=-2.82; p=0.005). It was found that before the physiotherapy program, the result of Functional reach test among the subjects was 21.5 (9; 40; 22.87) cm, while the test results after physiotherapy improved statistically significantly to 27.5 (12; 40; 27.31) cm, (Z=-3.18; p=0.001). It was found that before the physiotherapy program, the results of the Timed Up and Go test was 13.5 (8; 19; 13.56) seconds, while after the physiotherapy, the test index improved statistically significantly to 9.0 (7; 12; 9.75) seconds, (Z=-3.42; p=0.001). The results of the Tinetti balance and walking test before physiotherapy was 23.5 (11; 27; 20.75) points, with a statistically significant improvement after the physiotherapy program, as the result was 24 (13; 28; 22.37) points, (Z=-3.08; p=0.002). The results of the Berg balance test before physiotherapy was 45.0 (24.0; 53.0; 42.5) points. After the physiotherapy program, the balance improved statistically significantly to 45.5 (26.0; 56.0; 45.75) points, (Z=-3.32; p=0.001). It was found that before the physiotherapy program the subjects were less motivated 26.0 (14; 31; 25.37) points, meanwhile, after the physiotherapy program, the motivation of the subjects improved statistically significantly to 33.0 (28; 35; 32.56) points, which showed a significant increase in the subjects motivation (Z=-3.53; p=0.001).

Conclusions. The long-term physiotherapy program improved functional muscle strength, balance and gait in patients with Parkinson's disease, also the physiotherapy program had a significant effect on increasing their motivation.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Leišytė R. Sergančiųjų senatvine demencija geriatrinės reabilitacijos ypatumai. Gerontologija. 2014; 15(3): 184–192 p.
- 2. Radder, D. L. M., Silva de Lima A. L., Domingos J., Keus S. H. J., Van Nimwegen M., Bloem B. R. Physiotherapy in Parkinson's Disease: A Meta–Analysis of Present Treatment Modalities. Neurorehabil Neural Repair. 2020; 34(10): 871–880 p.
- 3. Borchers E. E., McIsaac T. T., Bazan-Wigle J. K., Elkins A. J., Bay R. C. and Farley B. G. A physical therapy decision—making tool for stratifying persons with Parkinson's disease into community exercise classes. Neurodegener Dis Manag. 2019; 9(6): 331–346 p.

## CHANGES IN THE PHYSICAL CAPACITY, MOVEMENT FUNCTION OF PATIENTS WITH PARKINSON'S DISEASE BASED ON MINDFULNESS EXERCISES, DEPENDING ON THE TIME OF THE PROCEDURE

#### Agnė Kubiliūtė, Eglė Lendraitienė, Jurgita Daubarienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Rehabilitation

**Introduction.** The rapid spread of Parkinson's disease around the world is constantly accompanied by a deterioration in the movement function [1] and physical capacity [2] of patients, and there is a growing need to treat the severe symptoms of the syndrome [3]. Mindfulness exercises are becoming one of the most popular methods that are applied to patients with Parkinson's disease [4]. It has been observed that the time of day is important for people with Parkinson's disease when physical activity is applied [5]. The study aim is to compare the changes of physical capacity, movement function in patients with Parkinson's disease based on Mindfulness disease, depending on the time of the procedure.

Research methods and organization. The study was conducted in the Kaunas County Parkinson's Society, Kaunas City, Lithuania. 23 patients participated in the study; 14 women (60,9%) and 9 men (39,1%). Patients were divided into two groups: the morning group (11 patients) and the afternoon group (12 patients). The mean age of the subjects in the morning group was  $61,36 \pm 8,59$  years, and in the afternoon group  $67,08 \pm 2,39$  years. Subjects were selected according to the following criteria: age of the subjects: 45-70 years; brief examination of the mental state, not identified or established mild cognition disorder; modified Hoehn and Yahr Parkinson's disease stage scale: stage 2-3; undocumented cases of gait stiffness; men and women voluntarily agreed to participate in the study. The patient's physical capacity was measured: Borg scale, visual fatigue test, orthostatic sample. The patient's movement function was measured: 6 min. walking test, Fullerton advanced balance scale, Tinetti gait and balance test. Also, before conducting a study, a questionnaire was provided for each subject, from which data on the age of the subject were collected, disease data, physical activity. The patients were performed before physiotherapy and after sixteen physiotherapy procedures. The data was analysed using SPSS for Windows software, version 27. The nonparametric Wilkokson test were used for quantitative dependent variables. Quantitative data are presented as median (xme), minimum value (xmin), maximum value x (xmax) and arithmetic mean (m) - xme(xmin; xmax; m) or as arithmetic mean (m) and standard deviation (SD) – m  $\pm$  SD. Non-parametric Mann-Whitney test was used to compare the two independent quantitative values. The Shapiro-Wilk test was used to check the normality of the data. A Spearman or Pearson correlation coefficient was used to determine the relationships. Differences with p<0,05 were considered statistically significant.

**Results.** In the morning group Borgo the score of the scale before and after improved significantly (Z=-2,236; p=0,025), afternoon group (Z=-2; p=0,046). No statistically significant differences were observed when comparing differences between groups (U=58; p=0,651). Visual fatigue scales before and after in the morning group the evaluation of the results improved significantly (Z=2,401; p=0,016), afternoon group (Z=-1,985; p=0,047). No statistically significant differences were observed when comparing differences between groups (U=60,5; p=0,74). Of the orthostatic sample in the morning group before and after was found to improve significantly (Z=-2,716; p=0,007), afternoon group (Z=-2,85; p=0,004). No statistically significant differences were observed when comparing differences between groups (U=64,5; p=0,928). Of the 6 min. walking test in the morning group before and after results didn't change statistically significantly (Z=-1,689; p=0,091), afternoon group (Z=-3,059; p=0,002). No statistically significant differences were observed when comparing differences between groups (U=42; p=0,151). Of the Fullerton balance test in the morning group before and after improved statistically significantly (Z=-2,754; p=0,006), afternoon group (Z=3,002; p=0,003). No differences were observed when comparing differences in change between groups (U=46,5; p=0,235). Of the Tinetti gait and balance test in the morning group before and after improved statistically significantly (Z=-2,754; p=0,006), afternoon group (Z=-2,565; p=0,01). No statistically significant differences were observed when comparing differences between groups (U=47,5; p=0,26). Morning and afternoon groups correlations between physical capacity and movement function indicators were performed in correlation analysis. In the morning: between orthostatic samples and 6 min. walking test (r=-0,746; p=0,008). In the afternoon: between orthostatic samples and Tinetti gait and balance test (r=-0,854; p<0.001).

Conclusions. We found that after the Mindfulness method, patients with Parkinson's disease improved movement function and physical capacity in the afternoon and morning groups. We observed that after the Mindfulness method, for afternoon and morning groups, results of movement function indicators are better, the results of physical capacity indicators are better. Also our study observed no difference between morning and afternoon groups movement function and physical capacity indicators.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Mirelman A, Rochester L, Reelick M, Nieuwhof Freek, Pelosin E, Abbruzzese G. V TIME: a treadmill training program augmented by virtual reality to decrease fall risk in older adults: study design of a randomized controlled trial. BMC Neurol [Internet]. 2013;13: 15.
- 2. Picelli A, Varalta V, Melotti C, Zatezalo V, Fonte C, Amato S, et al. Effects of treadmill training on cognitive and motor features of patients with mild to moderate Parkinson's disease: a pilot, single blind, randomized controlled trial. Funct Neurol [Internet]. 2016;31(1): 25 31.
- 3. Rascol O, Perez-Lloret S, Ferreira J. New treatments for levodopa-induced motor complications. Mov Disord [Internet]. 2015;30(11): 1451 60.
- 4. Cugusi L, Solla P, Zedda F, Loi M, Serpe R, Cannas A, et al. Effects of an adapted physical activity program on motor and non-motor functions and quality of life in patients with Parkinson's disease. Neuro Rehabilitation [Internet]. 2014;35(4): 789 94.
- 5. Thomsen TH, Kjaer TW, Jorgensen LB, Haahr A, Winge K. Does the Response to morning medication predict the ADL level of the day in Parkinson's disease? Parkinsons Dis. 2020.

### THE CORRELATION BETWEEN LOWER LIMB MUSCLE STRENGTH AND LENGTH, JOINT RANGE OF MOTION, BALANCE, FOOT POSTURE AND PAIN INTENSITY IN PATIENTS WITH NONSPECIFIC LOW BACK PAIN

#### Akvilė Janavičiūtė, Lina Leimonienė, Gražina Krutulytė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Rehabilitation

**Introduction.** Nonspecific low back pain is one of the major musculoskeletal disorders amongst adults causing disability and pain that leads to impairment of physical performance at work and in private life as well as placing a high financial burden on the health system (1). According to research, the greatest influence on the development of nonspecific low back pain is caused by disorders of the musculoskeletal system in the lower limb (2). The aim of this study is to determine and assess the correlation between lower limb muscle strength and length, active joint range of motion, balance, foot posture index and nonspecific low back pain.

Research methods and organization. The study was conducted at the department of physical medicine, Antakalnis' Clinic, Vilnius, Lithuania. This study was completed from April to June in 2021 after the approval of the Bioethics Centre of the Lithuanian University of Health Sciences. 23 participants, median age 57 (42-65) years old, males and females participated in the study. The inclusion criteria required that each participant be 40-65 years old, have a nonspecific low back pain for a duration longer than 12 weeks, be without radiating pain and experience pain no more than 8 on the Numeric Pain Rating Scale (1-7). Intensity of pain was evaluated using the Numeric Pain Rating Scale. Lower limb muscle strength was measured using Lovett technique. The length of hamstrings was measured using the 90/90 straight leg raising test, the length of hip flexors was measured using the Thomas test and the length of quadriceps was measured using the Kendall test. The active joint range of motion of the hip, knee and foot were measured using a goniometer. Dynamic balance was measured using a modified star excursion test. Foot posture index was measured using the FPI-6 which was used to assess the level of foot pronation and supination. All the results were calculated and assessed for any correlations with pain intensity. The data was analysed using SPSS for Windows software, version 27. Due to a small sample size the nonparametric tests were used for data analysis. Chi square test and Fishers Exact test were used to analyse relationships between the categorical data. Cramer's V coefficient was used to measure association between two nominal variables. Spearman correlation was used to assess the relationship between two variables. Qualitative data is showed in percentages. Quantitative data is showed as median (xme) (minimum (xmin) - maximum (xmax)) value. The statistical significance level was established at p<0.05.

**Results.** The median score for the Numeric Pain Rating Scale was 5 (2-7) points. There was an association between pain intensity and right hip flexors muscle strength (p=0,024). We found statistically significant correlation between pain intensity and the muscle strength of the left hip flexors (V=0,505; p=0,014). There was a significant correlation between pain intensity and the length of the right (r=0,486; p=0,019) and left (r=0,619; p=0,002) hip flexors, right (r=0,525; p=0,010) and left (r=0,570; p=0,005) knee flexors, right (r=-0,587; p=0,003) and left (r=-0,636; p<0,001) knee extensors muscles. There were significant correlations between pain intensity and joint ranges of motion of left (r=-0,417; p=0,048) hip flexion, right (r=-0,528; p=0,010) and left (r=-0,539; p=0,008) hip extension, right (r=-0,418; p=0,047) knee flexion, left (r=-0,478; p=0,021) ankle plantarflexion. There were statistically significant correlations between pain intensity and right (r=-0,769; p<0,001) and left (r=-0,742; p<0,001) leg dynamic balance. We found an association between pain intensity and the left foot

posture (p=0,003). There was a statistically significant correlation between higher pain scores and left foot pronation (V=0,652; p=0,002).

Conclusions. We found that patients who experienced stronger nonspecific low back pain had reduced hip flexors' muscle strength, shortened hip flexor, knee flexors and extensors muscles, reduced joint range of motion of the hip, knee and foot. The higher pain scores were associated with lower dynamic balance scores of both legs. Left foot pronation was related to an increase in intensity of nonspecific low back pain.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Pergolizzi JV, LeQuang JA. Rehabilitation for low back pain: A narrative review for managing pain and improving function in acute and chronic conditions. Pain and therapy. 2020; 9 (1): 83-96.
- 2. de Sousa CS, de Jesus FL, Machado MB, Ferreira G, Ayres IG, de Aquino LM, Fukuda TY, Gomes-Neto M. Lower limb muscle strength in patients with low back pain: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Journal of musculoskeletal & neuronal interactions. 2019; 19 (1): 69.

#### THE IMPACT OF THE TREE THEME METHOD ON THE QUALITY OF LIFE AND DAILY ACTIVITIES OF PEOPLE WITH MENTAL ILLNESS AND ANXIETY DISORDERS

#### Miglė Olencevičiūtė, Daiva Petruševičienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Rehabilitation

**Introduction.** Mental illnesses and disorders have a strong negative impact on individuals' daily activities and on their quality of life [1-6]. Now because of the global COVID-19 pandemic, people are increasingly concerned about their mental health. Some scientists believe that a new wave of mental illness will begin right after the pandemic, as the effects of the pandemic are already being felt globally [7-9]. The Tree Theme Method is an intervention based on creative activities and the telling and creation of one's life story which helps to cope with everyday life activities. Research aim was to evaluate the impact of the Tree Theme Method on the quality of life and daily activities of people with mental illness and anxiety disorders.

Research methods and organization. The head of the Psychiatry Department of LUHS Kaunas Hospital confirmed that there is no objection to conduct the research at LUHS Kaunas Hospital, Psychiatry Department. The research was conducted from 19th July 2021 to the 2nd August 2021. Only anonymous surveys and questionnaires such as The WHO Quality of Life Questionnaire (WHOQoL-BREF) and the Comprehensive Occupational Therapy Assessment Scale (COTE), and gender were collected during the study to ensure and maintain total anonymity. There were 20 patients in total who participated in the research. Subjects were selected to the following criteria: people diagnosed with mental illness; adult patients (> 18 years old); diagnosed with anxiety disorders; outpatient psychiatric services are provided. Exclusion criteria for patients were sedation states; minors (<18 years old); persons with symptoms of psychosis. After being picked out, 20 participants were randomly divided into 2 groups: study (n=10) and control groups (n=10). Study group contained 4 men and 6 women, control group – 2 men and 8 women. A quantitative study was performed. The control group received regular occupational therapy and problem solving in everyday situations, relaxation (breathing exercise 4-7-8). The study group received regular occupational therapy, relaxation (breathing exercise 4-7-8) and the Tree Theme Method. Data were processed and analyzed using the IBM SPSS Statistics 27 program. The following characteristics were calculated: normality tests,

medians, the level of significance chosen to test the statistical hypotheses was 0.05. The non-parametric Wilcoxon criteria was used to measure results before and after rehabilitation in groups, the Mann-Whitney U was used before and after interventions to compare between the groups.

Results. After analyzing the data of the research group, it was found that the overall quality of life changed statistically significantly (Z = -2.809; p=0.005) before the intervention based on Tree Theme Method (TTM), an improvement was observed for all members of the research group. Quality of life before the intervention was 68.5 (48-85; 70.6) points, after the TTM, the quality of life drastically improved to 82.5 (56-91; 78.80) points. After analyzing the data obtained by the control group, the results were slightly lower. The overall quality of life score before conventional occupational therapy was found to be 64 (55–86; 68.4). After conventional occupational therapy, the overall quality score rose to 65.5 points (55–90; 70.20). After evaluating the daily activities of the research group with the COTE scale before Tree Theme Method, it was observed that the daily activities were evaluated with statistically significant scores (Z = -2.814; p=0.005). Prior to TTM, daily activity was rated at 10.5 (8-22; 11.90) scores, with an improvement to 5.5 (1-20; 6.8) scores after intervention. Results of the control group differed statistically significantly from the beginning (Z = -2.501; p=0.012). Prior to conventional occupational therapy, COTE scores were 30 (7-73; 36), and after the intervention, the group mean improved to 28 (5-69; 33.8). There was no statistically significant difference in the quality of life between the study and control groups before (U = 43; p=0.631) or after (U = 28.5; p = 0.105) the interventions. Comparing the evaluations of daily activities before the interventions, a statistically significant difference was observed between the groups (U = 17; p=0.011), as well as between the groups after the interventions (U = 10; p=0.002). The control group performed better in the evaluation of overall daily activities than the study group even when both had shown improvements.

Conclusions: It was found that after using the Tree Theme Method positive impact on the daily activities and the quality of life were observed, although no statistically significant differences were observed between the study and control groups in the quality of life assessment.

- 1. Marangell LB MD. Resident's Guide to Clinical Psychiatry. Virginia: American Psychiatric Publishing Inc. 2009. 392 p.
- 2. Siddiqui S, Khalid J. Determining the caregivers' burden in caregivers of patients with mental illness. Pakistan Journal of Medical Sciences. 2019; Vol 35, 1329-1333 p.
- 3. Leufstadius C, Eklund M. Time use among individuals with persistent mental illness: Identifying risk factors for imbalance in daily activities. Scandinavian Journal of Occupational Therapy. 2014; Vol 21, Issue 1, 23-33 p. 4. Gibson RW, D'Amico M, Jaffe L, Arbesman M. American Journal of Occupational Therapy. 2011; Vol. 65, 247-256 p.
- 5. Puri BK, Treasaden IH. Textbook of psychiatry. Third edition. Cambridge, London: Churchill Livingstone Elsevier; 2011. 467 p.
- 6. Veerman, S.R.T., Schulte, P.F.J. & de Haan, L. Treatment for Negative Symptoms in Schizophrenia: A Comprehensive Review. 2017; Drugs 77, 1423–1459 p.
- 7. Fofana NK, Latif F, Sarfraz S, Bilal, Bashir MF, Komal B. Fear and agony of the pandemic leading to stress and mental illness: An emerging crisis in the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak. Psychiatry Research. 2020; Vol 291.
- 8. Kavoor AR. COVID-19 in People with Mental Illness: Challenges and Vulnerabilities. Asian Journal of Psychiatry. 2020; Vol 51.
- 9. Muruganandam P, Neelamegam S, Menon V, Alexander J, Chaturvedi SK. COVID-19 and Severe Mental Illness: Impact on patients and its relation with their awareness about COVID-19. Psychiatry Research. 2020; Vol 291.

## RESEARCH OF PARENTS AND REHABILITATION SPECIALISTS ATTITUDE TO THE APPLICATION OF TELEMEDICINE PRINCIPLES IN CHILDREN'S REHABILITATION

#### Marija Milašiūtė, Audronė Prasauskienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Children Rehabilitation

**Introduction.** The term telemedicine usually means that doctors treat patients remotely (1). Telemedicine is a technology for patient care that allows to diagnose, treat, and act as a preventive measure that will help their long-term health. Over time, COVID-19 pandemic has also changed the field of children's rehabilitation where telemedicine has become an important technology for providing medical care to patients. Telemedicine can make children's healthcare more efficient, organized, and accessible around the world (2–4). The aim of the study is to evaluate the attitude of parents and rehabilitation specialists to the application of telemedicine principles in children's rehabilitation.

**Research methods and organization.** The study was approved by the Lithuanian University of Health Sciences Bioethics Center (BEC-SR(M)-212). A one-time survey of respondents was conducted from May till September 2021. Questionnaires were prepared by the author of the study, based on scientific articles and literature on telemedicine and its application in children's rehabilitation. Two questionnaires were prepared using Google Forms software and posted on social media networks and also sent by e-mail to rehabilitation specialists and medical institutions. They were completed once by parents and rehabilitation specialists. The first questionnaire was completed by 119 parents raising children with developmental and functional disabilities. The average age of parents was  $34.13 \pm 6.207$ years, the average age of children was 5.4±4.01 years. The first ten questions of the questionnaire were created to collect sociodemographic data. The other fifteen were about parents' attitudes towards telemedicine and the quality of the services. The second questionnaire was completed by 132 rehabilitation specialists working with developmentally and functionally impaired children. The average age of rehabilitation specialists was 31.39±7.82 years. The first five questions were to collect sociodemographic data. The other twenty questions were about rehabilitation specialists' attitudes towards telemedicine, the quality of telemedicine services, and personal experience. Statistical analysis was performed with IBM SPSS Statistics 27. Quantitative data are presented as an arithmetic mean (m) and standard deviation (SD) -m ± SD. Qualitative data are presented as percentages (%). The Chisquare  $(\chi^2)$  criteria were used to assess the homogeneity of the qualitative data. The reliability of the questionnaires was tested by Cronbach's alpha coefficient ( $\alpha$ ). Values of ( $\alpha$ ) above 0.7 indicate an excellent internal consistency. The differences with p < 0.05 were considered statistically significant.

Results. The study was approved by the Lithuanian University of Health Sciences Bioethics Center (BEC–SR(M)–212). A one–time survey of respondents was conducted from May till September 2021. Questionnaires were prepared by the author of the study, based on scientific articles and literature on telemedicine and its application in children's rehabilitation. Two questionnaires were prepared using Google Forms software and posted on social media networks and also sent by e-mail to rehabilitation specialists and medical institutions. They were completed once by parents and rehabilitation specialists. The first questionnaire was completed by 119 parents raising children with developmental and functional disabilities. The average age of parents was 34.13 ±6.207 years, the average age of children was 5.4±4.01 years. The first ten questions of the questionnaire were created to collect sociodemographic data. The other fifteen were about parents' attitudes towards telemedicine and the quality of the services. The second questionnaire was completed by 132 rehabilitation specialists working with developmentally and functionally impaired children. The average age of rehabilitation

specialists was  $31.39\pm7.82$  years. The first five questions were to collect sociodemographic data. The other twenty questions were about rehabilitation specialists' attitudes towards telemedicine, the quality of telemedicine services, and personal experience. Statistical analysis was performed with IBM SPSS Statistics 27. Quantitative data are presented as an arithmetic mean (m) and standard deviation (SD) – m  $\pm$  SD. Qualitative data are presented as percentages (%). The Chi-square ( $\chi$ 2) criteria were used to assess the homogeneity of the qualitative data. The reliability of the questionnaires was tested by Cronbach's alpha coefficient ( $\alpha$ ). Values of ( $\alpha$ ) above 0.7 indicate an excellent internal consistency. The differences with p <0.05 were considered statistically significant.

Conclusions: 1. The majority of the surveyed parents agreed that telemedicine is a step towards better medical services and it can reduce the cost and inconvenience of traveling. The results achieved through telemedicine satisfied most of the participated parents. 2. All surveyed rehabilitation specialists agreed that telemedicine reduces the travel costs and inconveniences of traveling. Half of the surveyed rehabilitation specialists rate telemedicine quality as excellent.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Camden C, Pratte G, Fallon F, Couture M, Berbari J, Tousignant M. Diversity of practices in telerehabilitation for children with disabilities and effective intervention characteristics: results from a systematic review. Disabil Rehabil. 2020 Dec;42(24):3424-3436.
- 2. Chen Y, Kathirithamby DR, Li J, Candelario-Velazquez C, Bloomfield A, Ambrose AF. Telemedicine in the Coronavirus Disease 2019 Pandemic: A Pediatric Rehabilitation Perspective. Am J Phys Med Rehabil. 2021 Apr 1;100(4):321-326.
- 3. Burke BL Jr, Hall RW. Telemedicine: Pediatric Applications. Pediatrics. 2015;136(1):e293-e308. 4. Hsu N, Monasterio E, Rolin O. Telehealth in Pediatric Rehabilitation. Phys Med Rehabil Clin N Am. 2021 May;32(2):307-317.

## THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN FUNCTIONAL STATE OF THIGH MUSCLES, LUMBOPELVIC MOVEMENT CONTROL, ERGONOMICS AND LOW BACK PAIN IN OFFICE WORKERS

#### Rūta Maknavičiūtė, Eglė Lendraitienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Rehabilitation

Introduction. Daily computer usage of more than 7 hours, sitting with no breaks and lack of ergonomics is associated with the risk of low back pain (LBP) (1). Prolonged sitting can cause muscle tightness and pain that may result in the loss of motor coordination and motor control (2,3). People who are inactive and sit for long periods have reduced passive hip extension and hip muscle stiffness (4). It has been shown in the literature that an ergonomic approach, the provision of a suitable and comfortable work environment is effective in correcting posture disorders and musculoskeletal problems (5). Research aim was to assess the relations among functional state of thigh muscles, lumbopelvic movement control, ergonomics and low back pain in office workers.

Research methods and organization. The research was approved by Lithuanian University of Health Sciences Bioethics Center (BEC-SR(M)-29). This study resulted in a total sample of 25 office workers (17 females and 8 males) with LBP. The median of the age of participants was 35 (30-55; 39.2) years. Individuals diagnosed with other lower back pathologies (disc herniation, radiculopathy, spinal stenosis, spondylolisthesis, osteoarthritis) were excluded. LBP intensity was measured using visual analogue scale (VAS). Tightness of hip flexors, adductors, hamstrings and tensor fasciae latae muscles was tested. The maximum isometric muscle strength was measured using hand-held dynamometer

(Lafayette). Lumbopelvic movement control was determined using movement control test. Ergonomic data were collected through the rapid office strain assessment (ROSA) method. A questionnaire was used to collect information about the gender, age, duration of sitting time, mobile phone or computer use and knowledge about ergonomics in workstation. Statistical analysis was performed with "Microsoft Office Excel 2010" and IBM SPSS Statistics 27. Correlation was determined by calculating Spearman's Rank correlation coefficient between two quantitative variables or Cramer's V between two nominal variables. Correlation was determined according to the obtained values of correlation coefficient (r or V): r(V)=0.00-no correlation;  $r(V)=\pm [0.01-0.19]-very$  weak correlation;  $r(V)=\pm [0.20-0.39]-very$  weak correlation;  $r(V)=\pm [0.90-0.99]-very$  strong correlation;  $r(V)=\pm 1-very$  linear correlation. The significance level was p<0.05.

**Results.** Statistically significant (p<0,05) moderate positive correlations were found between lumbopelvic movement control tests "Rocking forwards" and "Rocking backwards" in quadruped position and low back pain intensity (V = 0,46, V = 0,49); ROSA Monitor and peripherals score and low back pain intensity ( $r_s = 0,59$ ). Statistically significant (p<0,05) strong positive correlations were found between lumbopelvic movement control test "Waiter's bow" and low back pain intensity (V = 0,721); ROSA scale section A, B, ROSA final score and low back pain intensity ( $r_s = 0,71$ ;  $r_s = 0,73$ ,  $r_s = 0,73$ ). However, no significant correlations were found between functional state of thigh muscles and low back pain intensity (p>0,05).

Conclusions: Office workers with moderate or strong low back pain had poorer lumbopelvic movement control tests "Rocking forwards", "Rocking backwards" in quadruped position and "Waiter's bow" in standing position test as well. Participants with higher scores of Rapid Office Strain Assessment in section A (seat pan height, seat pan depth, armrest position and back support position), B (monitor and telephone), Monitor and peripherals and final result had more intensive low back pain. It means the poorer ergonomics, the higher was pain intensity. However, no significant correlations were found between functional state of thigh muscles and low back pain intensity.

#### **References list:**

- 1. C.-Y. Cho, Y.-S. Hwang R-JC. Musculoskeletal symptoms and associated risk factors among office workers with high workload computer use. J Manip Physiol Ther. 2012;35:534–40.
- 2. Muntianaitė I, Juocevičius A, Varnienė L, Matulevič R. Skirtingų kineziterapijos metodų efektyvumas kaklinės dalies skausmą patiriantiems biuro darbuotojams. Gerontologija. 2014;15(3):177–183.
- 3. K.P. Granata, G.P. Slota SEW. Influence of fatigue in neuromuscular control of spinal stability. Hum Factors. 2004;46:81–91.
- 4. Boukabache A, Preece SJ BN. Prolonged sitting and physical inactivity are associated with limited hip extension: A cross-sectional study. Musculoskelet Sci Pract. 2021;51(102282).
- 5. Celik S, Celik K, Dirimese E, Taşdemir N, Arik T Bİ. Determination of pain in musculoskeletal system reported by office workers and the pain risk factors. Int J Occup Med Environ Health. 2018;31(1):91–111.

## EFFECTS OF DIFFERENT PHYSIOTHERAPEUTIC MEASURES FOR A FUNCTIONAL CONDITION FOR PEOPLE WITH CHRONIC LOW BACK PAIN

Roberta Bačiulytė, Gražina Krutulytė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Rehabilitation

**Introduction.** The prevalence of chronic lower back pain is increasing, despite the increasing use of medical treatments [1]. Chronic low-back pain is a major contributor to social burden and years lived with disability. [2]. The purpose of this investigation is to identify the effects of different physiotherapeutic measures for chronic low back pain.

Research methods and organization. The research was approved by the Bioethics Center of the Lithuanian University of Health Sciences (No. BEC-SR (M) -108). The study included 19 subjects 38,58±11,047 years old. Criteria for inclusion: a) lower back pain over a period of 3 months; b) persons aged 25-60; c) consent to participate in the investigation. Subjects randomly divided into two groups: the different physiotherapeutic measures (n=9) and the control group, to which nothing was applied (n=10). The following physiotherapeutic measures were applied to the first group of subjects: TENS, lumbosacral massage, application of the McKenzie method, and physiotherapy exercises. The application of each measure was performed in 10 separate procedures, for a total of 40 procedures per person, the study lasted 8 weeks. TENS was applied for 30 minutes, lumbosacral massage was applied for 15 minutes, the McKenzie method was applied for 12 minutes with 10 repetitions performed twice a day, physiotherapy exercises were applied for 30 minutes in one procedure. The participants were tested before and after each physiotherapeutic measure, as well as a final evaluation conducted after the study. To assess the lower back muscle endurance of the participants, the following tests were conducted: static back extensor endurance test, isometric abdominal endurance test, internal/external abdominal obliques test. To assess lumbar spine mobility, the applied tests include: thoracolumbar flexion, thoracolumbar extension, thoracolumbar lateral flexion, and the Modified Schober Test. Microsoft Excel and SPSS 27.0 programs are used for statistical data analysis. The nonparametric Mann-Whitney-Wilkoxon test was chosen for comparison between the two independent samples, and the Wilkoxon test for the two dependent samples. Differences were considered statistically significant when p < 0.05.

Results. The data of the control group was not statistically significant to the functional condition. Statistically significant data for static back extensor muscle strength were obtained using massage (Z=-2.521; p=0.012), the McKenzie method (Z=-2.521; p=0.012), and physiotherapy (Z=-2.366; p=0.018). Isometric strength of abdominal muscles was increased by TENS (Z=-2.677; p=0.007), massage (Z=-2.558;p=0.011), the McKenzie method (Z=-2.670; p=0.008), and physiotherapy (Z=-2,666; p=0.008). Data did not differ between groups (U=27.5; p=0.278). The application of all measures was statistically significant for the static strength of the internal/external abdominal oblique muscles on the anatomically left side: TENS (Z=-2.047; p=0.41), massage (Z=-2.388; p=0.017), the McKenzie method (Z=-2.524; p=0.012), and physiotherapy (Z=-2.251; p=0.024). Data did not differ between groups (U=38; p=0.604). Statistically significant data for right-sided internal/external abdominal oblique muscles endurance was found using the McKenzie method (Z=-2.668; p=0.008) and physiotherapy (Z=-2.533; p=0.011). No statistically significant data was found between groups after the study (U=36; p=0.497). Statistically significant data for forward bending was obtained using the McKenzie method (Z=2.251; p=0.024) and physiotherapy (Z=-2.251; p=0.024). The thoracolumbar extension was statistically significant using the McKenzie method (Z=-2.232; p=0.016) and physiotherapy (Z=-2.070; p=0.038). Thoracolumbar lateral flexion to the left was statistically significant using only the McKenzie method (Z=-2.232; p=0.026). Statistically significant data for thoracolumbar lateral flexion to the right was obtained with the McKenzie method (Z=-2.271; p=0.023) and physiotherapy (Z=-2.333; p=0.020). Data did not differ after the study between groups on the left (U=21; p=0.053) or right (U=26; p= 0.133) sides. The application of different measures to the Modified Schober test differ just between groups (U=19,5;p=0,035).

**Conclusions:** 1. The least effective measure for the functional condition was transcutaneous electrical nerve stimulation, the most effective for the functional condition was the McKenzie method and physiotherapy. 2. The application of physiotherapeutic measures compared with the control group was found not effective for isometric abdominal muscles endurance, internal/external abdominal oblique muscles endurance, thoracolumbar lateral flexion to both sides.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Garcia LM, Birckhead BJ, Krishnamurthy P, Sackman J, Mackey IG, Louis RG, Salmasi V, Maddox T, Darnall BD. An 8-Week Self-Administered At-Home Behavioral Skills-Based Virtual Reality Program for Chronic Low Back Pain: Double-Blind, Randomized, Placebo-Controlled Trial Conducted During COVID-19. J Med Internet Res. 2021 Feb 22;23(2):e26292. doi: 10.2196/26292. PMID: 33484240; PMCID: PMC7939946.
- 2. Peck J, Urits I, Peoples S, Foster L, Malla A, Berger AA, Cornett EM, Kassem H, Herman J, Kaye AD, Viswanath O. A Comprehensive Review of Over the Counter Treatment for Chronic Low Back Pain. Pain Ther. 2021 Jun;10(1):69-80. doi: 10.1007/s40122-020-00209-w. Epub 2020 Nov 4. PMID: 33150555; PMCID: PMC8119578.

### THE EFFECT OF CORRECTIVE EXERCISES ON THE FUNCTIONAL CONDITION OF THE UPPER LIMB OF SEDENTARY WORKERS

#### Mindaugas Arnašius, Brigita Zachovajevienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine

**Introduction.** An increasing number of people spend more time in sedentary work, which affects musculoskeletal disorders, tension and shortening of muscles, decreased muscle strength and amplitude, increased intervertebral disc compression, deteriorating posture, neck and shoulder complex pain are the most common of sedentary musculoskeletal disorders (1). Physical activity is an effective intervention method in reducing the progression of most chronic diseases but also has positive effect on the muscles and composition of the human body, it also reduces development of the psycho-emotional conditions in humans (2). Research aim: To evaluate the effect of corrective exercises on the functional condition of the upper limb of sedentary workers.

Research methods and organization. The study research was approved by Lithuanian University of Health Science Bioethics Center (BEC-SR(M)-172). The study was initiated and conducted on 2021.07.19 - 2021.08.30 the home of the subjects. Participants of the study were gathered from different workplaces which involves sedentary job. All the participants signed the informed consent form before taking part in this study. A total of 21 participated in the study 9 men, 12 women. In this study involved people aged 40- 50 working in a sedentary job, who felt pain in the neck, shoulders, decreased muscle strength in upper extremities, amplitude, impaired functional movements. Age of all subjects was  $46.62 \pm 2.69$  years. Age mean of the men was  $46.33 \pm 2.40$  years, and the mean age of the women was 46.83± 2.98 years. Selection criteria: voluntary consent to participate in the study; feeling of discomfort in the shoulders or neck; decreased amplitude of movements of the joints of the upper extremities; persons spending at least 4 to 5 hours a day sedentary position. Exclusion criteria: pain intensity not exceeding 6 points; engaged in professional sports; with less than 2 years of job experience. SAS was used to evaluate pain intensity; DASH was used to determine the degree of shoulder pain and dysfunction. Statistical analysis was performed using "IMB SPSS Statistics 27.0" software package. A non-parametric Wilcoxon test was used to compare the two dependent samples. Data were presented as the median (me), minimal (min), maximal (max) and the mean- me (min; max; mean). The significance level was set at p < 0.05.

**Results.** The median of the woman's pain intensity at the beginning of research was 3.5 (2-6; 3.7) points, men's 4 (2-6; 3.9) points. After physiotherapy, women's pain intensity was 2 (0-3; 1.5) points, men's 2 (0-3; 1.7). Examining the obtained data before and after physiotherapy statistically significant decrease intensity of pain was found in women (Z=-3.166; p=0.002) and men (Z=-2.810, p=0.005). Before physiotherapy, women's functional shoulder disability was evaluated -12.9 (5-18.3; 12.6) percent, men -10 (6.7-22.5; 11.6) percent. After physiotherapy, the functional shoulder disability of women was 7.1 (1.7-11.7; 7.1) percent, and that of women was 6.7 (3.3-13.3; 7.1) percent. Evaluating the obtained data before and after physiotherapy, a statistically significant decrease of functional shoulder disability was found in women (Z=-3.064; p=0.002) and men (Z=-2.675; p=0.007).

**Conclusions:** This study showed that correctional exercise program for men and women working sedentary work reduced the pain intensity, improved functional state of the upper limb.

#### **References list:**

1. Choi JH, Jung MH, Yoo KT. An analysis of the activity and muscle fatigue of the muscles around the neck under the three most frequent postures while using a smartphone. J Phys Ther Sci. 2016; 28 (5): 1660-1664. 2. Zakerian SA, Monazzam MR, Dehghan SF Mohraz MH, Safari H, AsghariM. Relationship Between Knowledge of Ergonomics and Workplace Conditions with Musculoskeletal Disorders among Nurses: A Questionnaire Survey. World Applied Sciences Journal 2013; 24 (2): 227 – 233.

#### POSSIBILITIES OF PROVIDING REHABILITATION SERVICES THROUGH TELEMEDICINE FOR CHILDREN WITH CEREBRAL PARALYSIS

#### Ieva Stakauskaitė, Indrtė Bakanienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Children Rehabilitation

**Introduction.** Telemedicine is widely used for children with cerebral paralysis (CP). Pandemic restrictions made telemedicine as a good option for continuous patient treatment (1). Wide possibilities of telemedicine are growing fast bringing all benefits for patients who need non-interrupting care. Telemedicine can reduce this risk of the development of age-related diseases by providing continuous treatment when live contacts are restricted. Enhanced monitoring is crucial for younger children as devastating complications, such as hip dysplasia, could be minimized (2). The aim of our study was to evaluate possibilities, advantages and disadvantages of telemedicine for providing rehabilitation services for CP children.

Research methods and organization. The study was conducted by collecting data and information from medical staff and from parents of CP children. Separate validated questionnaires containing 11 different questions each were used for medical specialists and for parents. All participants of this study (medical professionals and parents) were using telemedicine methods for rehabilitation of CP children for at least 1.5 year. Medical professional participants of the study were further divided into 2 groups: physical therapy specialists and occupational therapy specialists. The bioethical permission was obtained prior the study (No.: BEC-SR(M)-216).

All respondents of the study were informed about the aim and tasks of this study and how collected information would be used for evaluation and further development of telemedicine for improved treatment of CP children. Confidentiality and anonymity was assured by encoding all collected data before analysis. Different questionnaires with different questions and different semi structured interview plans were prepared for medical staff and parents of CP children. Data was collected from the participants as written answers to questionnaires, recorded interviews and direct additional

questions and answers. All collected data was grouped into different groups and analyzed by various aspects evaluating and comparing positive and negative results: a) within each group separately; b) among all groups for the same question types. A total number of participants in the study was 14.

**Results.** All participants of the study confirmed that telemedicine is a very important alternative way of complimentary treatment for CP children. Due to pandemic restrictions of live meetings, alternative continuous treatment with the help of Telemedicine was the only possible way for some patients to stay in contact with specialists. When live meetings of doctors with patients were not interrupted, more intensive and continuous care using telemedicine could be provided in between. Regular usage of telemedicine in CP treatment had a number of advantages: 1) CP children could get the treatment at home, without going to the hospital; 2) parents could easily organize and choose the best possible time and duration for their children; 3) Physical and occupational therapy specialists had more flexibility for planning tele meetings with their patients; 4) Bi-directional communication of doctors and patients could be organized both: live online or at any convenient time for both sides by sending questions, videos or getting advices and suggestions from specialists relatively soon. Such a fast communication would not be possible having live meetings only. However, alternative treatment ways of telemedicine have some disadvantages. Both, physical and occupational therapy specialists emphasized difficulties of demonstrating and explaining some specific tasks and exercises. The manual assistance for a CP child performing some specific tasks was necessary. There was a higher risk that some tasks could be done incorrectly without live manual control. Some disadvantages were confirmed by the parents of CP children too: 1) some tasks were difficult to understand and to perform correctly without live manual control by the specialist; 2) CP children could not fully focus during designated hour for the treatment course online with the specialist; 3) family members at home as well as home atmosphere sometimes were inhibiting the willingness and active working during live online meeting.

Conclusions: Telemedicine is an important and complimentary way to provide continuous and uninterrupted complex treatment for CP children. Live visits and meetings with doctors are essential in the beginning stages of the treatment with additional tele medical courses between live meetings. In opposite, for advanced CP patient's alternative telemedicine can be used as the main method of the treatment, supported by short and irregular meetings which are necessary for live and manual control.

#### References list:

- 1. Eisenstein E, Kopacek C, Cavalcante SS, Neves AC, Fraga GP, Messina LA. Telemedicine: a bridge over knowledge gaps in healthcare. Current pediatrics reports. 2020 Jul 1:1-6.
- 2. Ben-Pazi H, Beni-Adani L, Lamdan R. Accelerating telemedicine for cerebral palsy during the COVID-19 pandemic and beyond. Frontiers in Neurology. 2020 Jun 26;11:746.

### ATTITUDE OF PARENTS RAISING CHILDREN WITH SERIOUS COMPLEX DISABILITIES ON ALTERNATIVE REHABILITATION METHODS

#### Ligita Žilaitienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Children Rehabilitation

**Introduction.** Alternative rehabilitation methods are described as medical care that is not standard medical practice but complements standard medical procedures (National Institutes of Health, 2015) (1). It is noticeable that there is not much research in Lithuania on the attitude of parents raising children with severe complex disabilities to alternative rehabilitation methods. Therefore, a study was

conducted is to reveal the attitudes of parents with severe complex disabilities towards alternative rehabilitation methods.

Research methods and organization. In order to determine the attitudes of parents with severe complex disabilities towards alternative rehabilitation methods, a qualitative study was conducted, and equilibrium structures selected for data collection were interviewed. The study was approved for bioethics under BEC approval no. BEC - SR (M) -201. Criteria selection was applied to the study contingent. The study was conducted from May to October. In the qualitative study, the price is 5 subjects who meet the selection criteria - parents raising a child with a severe complex disability older than 2 years; the child was subjected to 3 or more different alternative rehabilitation methods. Respondents in the study provided demographic data about their disabled child, as this made it easier to moderate the interview and plan the course of the interview. All study participants are women raising a child with a severe disability. The age of the two children was 3 years, the other children were 4, 5 and 6 years old difficult children have cerebral palsy with concomitant diseases such as microcephaly, mixed developmental disorders, vision problems, neurological disorders or heart disease and immediate incontinence. Many mothers learned the diagnosis from birth, and only one mother notes that when a child is 2 months old.

Results. The analysis of semi-structured interviews identified 3 main topics and 15 subtopics. All respondents were coded. The experience of all respondents with alternative medicine was only positive. Opinions have also emerged as to the situation in which traditional medicine cannot, and distrust of traditional medicine is emerging<...> I am not saying that our medicine does not help, but knowing how it is with it, <...> "(A / 93)," <...> I am not saying that I do not trust traditional medicine <...> but for some reason don't help, we're not getting stronger with her ... <(> D / 100) ".Concerns about the future of children have emerged "<...> What's next? Who will take care of her when I can't? And the further away it becomes, the more terrible it is to live with such thoughts, for I perceive only one that it will always be only dependent on us ... "(B / 210); "The thought that we will not live forever, and what will happen then?" (E / 150). Many respondents referred to the personal purchase of guilt for the quality of life of a child with a disability to assume that mothers would do more to develop the child's independence, improve their quality of life, improve physical and psychological pain and facilitate the family's daily routine. to hurt him less ... '(C / 230),' ... it is our desire as parents to do all we can ... '(D / 58). According to the respondents, alternative rehabilitation can have a positive psychological effect, a child with a severe complex disability can concentrate more easily, fix attention and ease communication and psychological problems. <...> "(D / 112)," <...> we have more and more emotions, more and more sounds, saliva has decreased <...> "(E / 321)," <....> to react to the environment, to us as parents, eye contact occurred ... "(A / 65).

**Conclusions:** 1. There is a lack of professional alternative rehabilitation specialists in Lithuania and no modern alternative rehabilitation centers have been established. 2. Another problem that has emerged is the financial difficulties of families raising a separate child and the lack of state support, which means that many children cannot use alternative rehabilitation services. 3. Alternative rehabilitation provides a positive psychological effect.

#### **References list:**

1. National Center for Complementary and Integrative Health. Complementary, alternative, or integrative health: what's in a name? [Internet] Bethesda (MD): National Center for Complementary and Integrative Health; c2016. [cited 2015 Feb 24]. Available from: https://nccih.nih.gov/health/integrative-health.

### TEACHERS' ATTITUDE TOWARDS BEHAVIORAL ISSUES AND LACK OF INDEPENDENCE IN CHILDREN WITH AUTISM

#### Evaldas Melceris, Audronė Prasauskienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Children Rehabilitation

**Introduction.** In the last two decades, there has been a rapid increase in the number of school-children with autism who are enrolled in mainstream schools [1]. Children with autism often exhibit delayed speech, behavioral disturbances, lack of social responsiveness and daily living skills [2]. Researchers have found that teachers often lack knowledge about the specific characteristics and needs of school-children with autism and the practices that effectively support them in school [1]. A comprehensive approach is needed to improve outcomes for school-children with autism [1]. The aim of the study is to investigate teacher's attitude towards the problems of behavior and lack of independence of children with autism and the possibilities of their solution.

Research methods and organization. The study was performed with the permission of the Bioethics Center of Lithuanian University of Health Sciences No. BEC-SR(M)-217. The study was conducted from 2021 of September to 2021 of November. Fourteen teachers (3 men and 12 women; mean age 35.64±11.28 years, range 23-56) working with children with autism were interviewed using a semi-structured interview method. Teachers were selected on the basis of the selection criteria: voluntary consent to participate in the study, educators working in the field of pedagogy, working in an educational institution with a school-children with autism. Prior to the participation, teachers were informed about the research topic, the principles of confidentiality, and the ethics that guide the work. Before the survey, educators filled in a questionnaire of the characteristics of the subjects. The survey was conducted remotely using the Zoom platform. At the beginning of the interview, each teacher was informed that the interview will be recorded and used for scientific purposes only. The interview consisted of two research topics, on the behavior and independence of children with autism. Research questions were formulated for each research topic, and interview questions were formulated for these. Informants were asked about children behavior and independence problems, their causes, and solutions. The research data were transcribed and analyzed by the method of qualitative content analysis.

Results. The obtained data are transcribed from the recorded interviews into a Microsoft Word document after each meeting with the subject. Obtained data were coded to find meaningful units in the responses and to focus on the essentials. The most common behavioral problems identified by teachers was: aggression, self-aggression, refusal to act, and hyperactivity. The main reasons for the named behaviors were unsuitable environment, sensory problems, physiology, attention-seeking. The most effective behavioral solutions were identified as the use of alternative communication, structure application, environment adaptation. In order to change misbehavior, teachers use alternative communication, a structured agenda, elements of ABA and music therapy. Regarding the problems of children's lack of independence, the teachers mentioned that children often have problems with dressing, eating, personal hygiene, and toileting. The main reasons for the lack of independence were the children's lack of involvement in independent activities due to lack of understanding of the task, as well as the haste of those around them, and adult hyper-custody of the child. After identifying the reasons for the lack of independence, educators emphasized that the most effective ways to address independence are to allow children to perform activities independently and to provide clear sequences, and activity-based learning. Educators expressed a consensus on the most effective measure, which

was the performance scheme. School teachers expressed the need for training and seminars with more practical activities, as well as direct training of specialists to solve problems in the workplace.

Conclusions: Teachers face children's manifestations of misbehavior and lack of independence while working with school-children with autism. It is important to organize practical training that provides validated methodologies to help teachers to address children's behavioral and independence issues. Teachers expressed the need for teaching assistants and occupational therapists support in the educational institution in order to better address the emerging problems of behavior and independence of children.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Roberts J, Webster A. Including students with autism in schools: a whole school approach to improve outcomes for students with autism. International Journal of Inclusive Education. 2020 Jan 17:1-8.
- 2. Kahana E, Lee JE, Kahana J, Goler T, Kahana B, Shick S, Burk E, Barnes K. Childhood autism and proactive family coping: Intergenerational perspectives. Journal of Intergenerational Relationships. 2015 Apr 3;13(2):150-66.

### DAY-CARE CENTER SPECIALISTS' KNOWLEDGE AND ATTITUDES IN MANAGING THE BEHAVIORAL PROBLEMS IN CHILDREN WITH AUTISM

#### Ugnė Steponavičiūtė, Indrė Bakanienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Children Rehabilitation

Introduction. Children with autism often seem to be disobedient because they are reserved, irritable, misunderstood, antisocial (1). According to studies, a third of children with autism spectrum disorder (ASD) is diagnosed with emotional or behavioral disorders that can cause behavioral problems. If these children receive proper education and care they can integrate into society, learn to communicate with other individuals, and form relationships (2,3). Studies that assess the perspectives of day-care centers in managing the behavioral issues of children with ASD have not been conducted at a Lithuanian level. Aim of the study - to examine day-care center specialists' knowledge and attitudes in managing the behavioral problems in children with autism.

Research methods and organization. The quantitative research section - an instantaneous study using an anonymous questionnaire survey method. In the questionnaire, which was created by the author, respondents were asked 11 questions. The respondents were 79 day-care center specialists who work with children with autism. Descriptive statistics by using the frequencies of absolutes (n) and percentages (%) were used to assess the allocation of examined characteristics. Selection criteria: individuals who work with children on the autism spectrum in day-care centers; individuals who work with children who have autism and behavioral disorders; individuals who have worked in day-care centers for no less than one year; and individuals who answered all the compulsory questions in the questionnaire. In the qualitative part, a semi-structured interview was used, by interviewing 5 day-care center specialists. The data was analysed using thematic analysis. The survey was conducted in the year 2021, from May through September. The knowledge of the specialists of child day-care centers was assessed during the qualitative research. Knowledge was assessed by knowing the causes of the misbehavior, the adequacy of methods and measures to manage the misbehavior of children with autism.

**Results.** Specialists were asked to evaluate whether the listed reasons and statements are related to the behavioral problems of children with autism. All 79 respondents agreed that inappropriate behavior

associated with ASD is related to the child's inability to ask for help, express their needs. The statement about overly sensitive reactions to the surroundings was met with the approval of 60.8% of the respondents. The statements that have caused the most: misunderstanding language 48.1%, not understanding what is happening or why it is happening 43%, inability to make friends 62%, pain 48.1%. The statement about disliking being around other people was met with disapproval from 46.8% of the respondents while 31.6% were doubtful. Specialists were also asked to evaluate which measures and methods are the most effective in managing the behavioral problems of children with autism. Touching different textures, training the vestibular system with various tasks and exercises as well as adapting the surroundings were met with the approval of all the 79 respondents. Breaking down information into small steps and stages as well as daily enrichment of individual exercises were both met with a 91.1% approval. Daily routine images received approval from 87.3% of the respondents. Planning the number of sensory stimuli received the approval of 84.8%. Communicating through pictures and physical things received 83.5% of the respondents' approval. The statement about the change of surroundings, letting the child spend time alone, and calm down were met with 82.3% approval. The respondents also agreed with the statement about teaching the children various activities or skills through video material as well as teaching peers how to communicate with a child with ASD, the approval was 82.3%. Positive reinforcement by giving rewards for activities that were performed was met with 78.5% approval. Social narrative received 75.9% of the respondents' approval.

Conclusions: Day-care center specialists' knowledge of the reasons for behavioral problems is contrasting. The majority were doubtful or uninformed about communication, socialization issues, pain. The statement about communication issues received unanimous approval from all the participants. Specialists seemed to know the recommended behavior management methods well. Many respondents correctly identified 11 statements, which measures are the most effective in managing the unfit behavior of children with ASD.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Barkauskienė R, Zacharevičienė A. Darbas su vaikais, turinčiais elgesio ir emocinių sunkumų bei sutrikimų. Vilnius. 2019.
- 2. Meindl JN, Delgado D, Casey LB. Increasing engagement in students with autism in inclusion classrooms. Child Youth Serv Rev. 2020;111(104854):104854.
- 3. Hart Barnett J. Three evidence-based strategies that support social skills and play among young children with autism spectrum disorders. Early Child Educ J. 2018;46(6):665–72.

### ASSESEMENT OF DIFFERENT PATIENT - REPORTED OUTCOME MEASURES IN PATIENTS WITH LOW BACK PAIN

Giedrė Vaičienė, Kristina Berškienė, Vilma Tamulionytė, Vidmantas Zaveckas

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine

**Introduction.** Patient-reported outcome measures are essential in patient-centered care, especially in non-pharmacological interventions for low back pain (1). Although Oswestry Disability Index is 'golden standard' for functional disability evaluation, it has some disadvantages. It is most sensitive for persistent severe pain measurements, and it does not include questions about difficulty moving between positions such as sit to stand (2). The Spine Functional (SFI) is a tool to assess the impact of spinal problems, including pain on everyday activities (3). The aim of this research was to evaluate correlations and differences between various patient-reported outcome measures in adults with non-specific low back pain.

Research methods and organization. The study was approved by Kaunas Regional Biomedical Research Ethics Committee. It was a two-stage study. Stage one was performed by translating and cross-culturally adapting the SFI questionnaire to Lithuanian language. This process was performed using the guidelines recommended by the International Society for Pharmacoeconomics and Outcomes Research (4). During stage two volunteers with non-specific, chronic, or subacute low back pain were invited to participate. A total of 123 subjects participated in this study. Median age was 44.5(18-76) years, 70.7% of them were women. The inclusion criteria were age >18 years, symptoms duration—at least 6 weeks, native speakers of Lithuanian. Exclusion criteria were identified structural causes of back pain, infection, inflammatory disease, neurological disease, or any metabolic disorder that may affect low back area, pregnancy, use of analgesics or myorelaxants in the last 12 hours. All volunteers who agreed to participate were introduced to the study design and purpose. They completed two questionnaires: Lithuanian version of Oswestry Disability Index (ODI), Lithuanian version of the Spine Functional Index (SFI), evaluated their pain intensity using Numeric Rating Scale (NRS) and filled in a short form about their age, gender, and health status. The final ODI score is considered as a percentage of the patients' subjective disability, higher scores on the questionnaire indicate greater levels of perceived disability. On the contrary, higher SFI scores indicate better functional status, therefore in this research the final SFI results were flipped to equate it to ODI final score. Data analysis was performed using IBM SPSS 28.0.1.0 Software. With regards to the relationship between quantitative variables, Spearman's correlation coefficient was computed. The Wilcoxon test was applied for two dependent samples. Significance level  $\alpha$ =0.05. The results are presented as median (Md), minimum (min), maximum (max) values – Md(min-max).

Results. Only statistically significant correlations are presented in the results. A medium strength positive relationship was found between NRS score and ODI (r=0.455; p<0.001). Similar results were found between NRS score and SFI (r=0.544; p<0.001). The correlation between SFI and ODI final scores was very strong (r=0,834; p<0.001). Correlations between NRS and SFI items about changing positions were weak to medium strength. Correlations of NRS and SFI items "I change position frequently for comfort" (r=0.312; p<0.001), "I have difficulty moving in bed" (r=0.304; p<0.001) and "I have difficulty getting in and out of chairs" (r=0.282; p<0.001) were weak. Medium strength correlation was found with item "I go upstairs slower or use a rail "(r=0.506; p<0.001). The strength of the relationship between NRS and SFI items may be related to the fact, that NRS is not a functional status questionnaire but a scale that represents existing pain intensity. The relationships between SFI items about changing positions and ODI were medium to strong. Correlation between ODI and SFI item "I change position frequently for comfort" was (r=0.510; p<0.001), "I have difficulty moving in bed" was (r=0.572; p<0.001), "I have difficulty getting in and out of chairs" was (r=0.573; p<0.001). The strongest correlation was with the item "I go upstairs slower or use a rail" (r=0.699; p<0.001). It is important to note that the SFI flipped final score (26(2-84)% was statistically significantly higher than ODI final score(12(0-46)%);(z=-9.146; p<0.001). We assume this happened because patients with non-specific, mostly mild to moderate low back pain participated in this study.

Conclusions: Higher scores in Numeric Rating Scale are associated with a poorer subjective functional status in adults with non-severe, non-specific low back pain. Questions about difficulty moving between postures are strongly associated with a final percentage of disability index. The Spine Functional Index shows higher disability than Oswestry Disability Index - it could be proposed as more suitable questionnaire for back pain status or treatment evaluation in patients with mild to moderate low back pain.

- 1. Stamm TA, Boesendorfer A, Omara M, Ritschl V, Štefanac S, Mosor E. Outcomes research in non-specific low back pain: Knowledge transfer in clinical practice. Wiener Klinische Wochenschrift. 2019;131(21–22):550–7.
- 2. Davidson M, Keating JL. A comparison of five low back disability questionnaires: Reliability and responsiveness. Physical Therapy. 2002;82(1):8–24.
- 3. Gabel CP, Melloh M, Burkett B, Michener LA. The Spine Functional Index: development and clinimetric validation of a new whole-spine functional outcome measure. Spine Journal [Internet]. 2019;19(2):e19–27.
- 4. Wild D, Grove A, Martin M, Eremenco S, McElroy S, Verjee-Lorenz A, et al. Principles of good practice for the translation and cultural adaptation process for patient-reported outcomes (PRO) measures: Report of the ISPOR Task Force for Translation and Cultural Adaptation. Value in Health [Internet]. 2005;8(2):94–104.

## EVALUATION OF POSTURE, RESPIRATORY SYSTEM FUNCTIONAL PARAMETERS, TRUNK STATIC ENDURANCE AND LUMBAR – PELVIC STABILITY IN YOUNG ADULTS WITH BODY TILT

Simona Kačkauskaitė<sup>1,2</sup>, Algė Daunoravičienė<sup>1</sup>, Margarita Radžiūnienė<sup>2</sup>
<sup>1</sup>Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine; <sup>2</sup>Public Institution
Kineziterapijos akademija

**Introduction.**: Lack of physical activity and a more sedentary lifestyle are currently increased, which is an integral part of skeletal muscle disorders (1,2). Long sitting causes structural changes in the body due to an inadequate load on the muscles that stabilize the spine, internal organs, and increased diaphragm pressure (3,4). The aim of our research was to evaluate the posture, the functional parameters of the respiratory system, the static endurance of the trunk, the stability of the lumbar-pelvic in young adult's with body tilt.

Research methods and organization. The study was approved by the Lithuanian University of Health Sciences Bioethics Center (BEC-SR(M)-107). The study involved 32 individuals, including 20 women and 12 men. Subjects were divided into two groups according to body tilt, which was determined by assessing posture in the sagittal plane. 1st group (30.06±5.2) years and BMI index was (22.9±3.5) kg/m2. In the 2nd group (28.07±7.2) years and BMI index was (22.3±3.2) kg/m2. There was no difference between groups by age, BMI index score and physical activity Baecke score. The study included young adults who were moderately physically active; had no diagnosed respiratory diseases; not experiencing acute back or joint pain; free of scoliosis. Tests were made at one particular time. To assess the posture we used the posture analysis grid, the APECS app. Using this app we assessed posture in the frontal and sagittal planes. In the frontal plane we put the markers (head; acromion; ASIS; knees; feet). And in the sagittal plane we assessed the deviation of the body from the midline (5). Respiratory functional parameters were determined by spirometry (FVC;FEV1;PEF;FER) as well as in Stange and Henche samples. Test of static endurance of the left and right sides trunk muscles, abdominal muscles, and back extensors muscles were performed. Lumbar - pelvic motion control assessment tests were chosen lumbar - pelvic stability. The body tilt of the 1st group ranged from 0 to 1.5 degrees, and that of the 2nd group ranged from 1.6 to 3.1 degrees. Statistical analysis was performed using SPSS 27.0 software. Due to the small sample size, the Mano-Whitney-Wilkoxon criterion (U) was used to compare the two independent samples, the Wilkoxon criterion (Z) was used for the dependent samples. Quantitative data are presented as median (xme), minimum value (xmin), maximum value (xmax) and arithmetic mean (m) as xme (xmin- xmax; m). Test results data are considered statistically significant when p<0.05.

**Results.** After analyzing the posture data in the frontal plane, the head position was 0.25(0-2.1; 0.49) degrees in the 1st group and 1.2(0.1-2.1; 1.12) degrees in the 2nd group (U=47.000; p=0.003). When comparing the position of the shoulders, the 1st group had 0.55(0.1 - 1.9; 0.75) degrees, and the 2nd group had 2.2(0.4-3.1; 2.1) degrees (U=23.500; p<0.001). After assessing the position of the knee, the 1st group had 0.1(0-0.6; 0.17) degrees, and the 2nd group had 0.85(0.1-2.1; 0.79) degrees. The difference between groups was statistically significant (U=33.500; p<0.001). According to the PEF (the maximum expiratory flow rate measured during forced expiration) parameter, in the 1st group 248.5(138-501; 267.17) 1/s, and in the 2nd group 186(100-280; 197) 1/s, the difference is statistically significant (U=74.000; p=0.048). No statistically significant difference was found between respiratory arrest tests, forced vital capacity, and forced expiratory volume. The static endurance of abdominal muscles were 64.5(35-99; 66.4) s in the 1st group and 38.5(20-97; 48.3) s in the 2nd group, the difference is statistically significant (U=71.000; p=0.037). The static endurance of the back extensor muscles, in the 1st group was 74(40-114; 72.1) s, in the 2nd -45.5(10-98; 50.2) s, the difference is statistically significant (U=62.000; p=0.014). The static endurance of the lateral trunk muscles on the left side, in the 1st group was 38.5(16-68; 41.6) s and in the 2nd - 24(11-50; 27.7) s, the difference is statistically significant (U=59.500; p=0.011). A statistically significant difference (U=64,000; p=0.018) was also found when comparing the static endurance of the right side of both groups: first group – 41(20-65; 42.2) s and second group 25(9-57; 28) s. After evaluating the lumbar – pelvic stability, no statistically significant difference was found between the groups in the lumbar – pelvic movement control assessment tests.

Conclusions: Young adults with higher body tilt had poorer posture in the frontal plane also their static endurance of the lateral trunk muscles, abdominal muscles and back extensor muscles was poorer than young adult's with lower body tilt. Most respiratory function parameters results and lumbar – pelvic motion control assessment tests did not show any difference between young adult's with higher and lower body tilt.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Ricci F, Izzicupo P, Moscucci F, Sciomer S, Maffei S, Di Baldassarre A et.al. Recommendations for Physical Inactivity and Sedentary Behavior During the Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) Pandemic. 2020; Front in Pub Hea. 8. doi:10.3389/fpubh.2020.00199;
- 2. Silva DR, Werneck AO, Malta DC, Romero D. Changes in movement behaviors and back pain during the first wave of the COVID-19 pandemic in Brazil. Braz J Phys Ther. 2021 Aug 30. doi: 10.1016/j.bjpt.2021.07.006;
- 3. Caromano FA, Amorim CAP, Rebelo CF, Contesini AM, Fávero FM, Costa JR et. al. Prolonged sitting and physical discomfort in university students. 2015; Acta Fisiatr. 22:176–180. doi: 10.5935/0104-7795.20150034;
- 4. Singla D, Veqar Z. Association Between Forward Head, Rounded Shoulders, and Increased Thoracic Kyphosis: A Review of the Literature. 2017; Jou of Chir Med, 16(3), 220–229. doi:10.1016/j.jcm.2017.03.004.

## PARENTS AND SPECIALISTS APPROACH TO GOALS PHYSICAL THERAPY FOR CHILDREN WITH CEREBRAL PARALYSIS INVESTIGATION

#### Laima Liaudanskytė, Indrė Bakanienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Children Rehabilitation

**Introduction.** Cerebral palsy (CP) is one of the most challenging diagnoses among kids. This set of disorders among children appears from non-progressive immature brain damage in prenatal or infancy [1]. Families with a child with a disability face anxiety, stress, psychological disorders, and specific needs of the child [2]. For the past years, there is a greater focus on goal-oriented therapy. The SMART goal system states that objectives should be specific, measurable achievable, relevant and time-bound. The main purpose of this research is to investigate parents and specialists approach to a physical therapy goals [3].

Research methods and organization. The study was approved by Research Ethics Committee (No. BEC-SR(M)-205). All participants signed the informed consent form before taking part in this study. The study was conducted in October-November 2021. It was written through systematic qualitative research and phenomenological design. The study involved 7 parents/guardians raising a child with CP and 2 physiotherapists working with these children. Children ranged in age from 2 to 6, with four boys and three girls. A semi-structured interview was used to obtain the most complete and targeted information. The questions in this interview were raised before the study for both the childs parents/guardians and the physiotherapists. A data collection questionnaire was used to find out the demographic and health information of the respondents and the children.

Results. The research is analyzed through topics and sub-themes. The first topic – the main goals of parents for a child with CP are analyzed in 4 sub-themes. Start of rehabilitation, the goal of parental rehabilitation, parents' attitudes towards the goal of physiotherapists rehabilitation and childs motivation. The subjects indicated that their goals and those of specialists coincide. After coding the answers of the respondents, we can notice that the main goal of physiotherapists is to strengthen the injured leg, control the injured arm and improve posture. Goals also include correct gait. According to the respondents' answers, it can be noticed that childrens motivation depends on fatigue or lunch time, if it is disturbed. Most indicated that children need incentives and different ways of engaging in order to be motivated to perform the indicated activities. The second topic - the main goals of specialists for a child with CP is analyzed in 3 sub-themes. The goal of physiotherapists' rehabilitation, physiotherapists attitudes towards parental physiotherapy goals and family expectations and benefits of physiotherapy for a child with CP. For children with hemiplegia, physiotherapists have identified the use of both hands or feet. In children with ataxic CP, physiotherapists indicated the use of compensatory measures and the prevention of deterioration as the main goal. Physiotherapists agree that goals coincide with parental goals and expectations. Often professionals have more goals for children, but parents agree with them and work together to achieve the desired result. According to physiotherapists, the benefits of physiotherapy for children with CP depend on the time spent attending the procedures. The more and the longer the rehabilitation, the more effective and visible results will

Conclusions: The study helped to reveal the attitudes of parents and professionals towards physiotherapy, its goals and benefits for kids with CP. The parents stated that their goals and those of specialists in physiotherapy coincide. However, physiotherapists place more emphasis on functional goals without fulfilling the entire SMART system. They do not specify the time taken to achieve the goal.

- 1. Rosenbaum P, Paneth N, Leviton A, Goldstein M, Bax M, Damiano D, Dan B, Jacobsson B. A report: the definition and classification of cerebral palsy April 2006. Dev Med Child Neurol Suppl. 2007 Feb 1;109(suppl 109):8-14.
- 2. Whittingham K, Wee D, Sanders M, Boyd R. Responding to the challenges of parenting a child with cerebral palsy: A focus group. Disability and rehabilitation. 2011 Jan 1;33(17-18):1557-67.

3. Bexelius A, Carlberg EB, Löwing K. Quality of goal setting in pediatric rehabilitation—A SMART approach. Child: care, health and development. 2018 Nov;44(6):850-6.

### THE EFFECT OF CORRECTIVE EXERCISES ON THE FUNCTIONAL STATE OF THE CERVICAL SPINE FOR WOMEN IN SEDENTARY WORK

#### Kotryna Tallat-Kelpšaitė, Brigita Zachovajevienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine

**Introduction.** In today's ever-evolving world, there has been a growing number of people who are doing sedentary work [1]. Individuals, who are working sedentary work for many hours, often face disorders of the upper body's musculoskeletal system, increased tension in muscles, changes in posture or reduced quality of life [2]. Neck pain is more prevalent in women, this may be attributed to reduced muscle strength [3]. According to Akram Mehri, muscle corrective exercise program is recommended to improve functional rates [4]. The aim of the research is to evaluate the effect of corrective exercises on functional state of the cervical spine in women performing sedentary work.

Research methods and organization. The study was approved by the Bioethics center (BEC-SR (M) -182). The study was initiated and completed on 2021.08.01 - 2021.10.01 in "Public Institution" Regional Mazeikiai Hospital". All participants signed the informed consent form before taking part in this study. The study included 25 women devided into 2 groups: I - study group composed of 13 participants that were exposed to corrective exercises and II - control group had 12 participants. The total age of the subjects was  $49.64 \pm 3.81$  years. All of them worked a sedentary job for at least 1 year and spent at least 8 hours at the sitting position at work. Individuals with other cervical spine conditions (acute and severe pain, inflammation, trauma and surgical interventions in the spine) were excluded. Functional state of the neck was evaluated by active ranges of motion of cervical spine using goniometer: neck flexion, right side rotation, left side rotation. W.W.K. Hoeger's visual scale was used for posture assessment. Both groups were homogeneous by all range of motion results and W.W.K. Hoeger's visual posture assessment scale scores before the trial (p=>0.05); questionnaire was used for information about age and duration of sedentary work. Women in study group performed an exercise program for 8 weeks, 5 days per week, in their workplace for 5-7 minutes. The program included cervical posture corrective exercises. Data analysis was performed using the IBM SPSS Statistics 27 software package. The Wilkoxon (Z) criterion - used to compare the two dependent samples. The nonparametric Mann-Whitney Wilcoxon (U) was applied to the two independent samples. A statistically significant difference was considered when p<0.05.

**Results.** After evaluation of active neck flexion range of motion, there was no statistically significant difference in study group after the exercise program (Z=-1.342; p=0.18). In control group there was also no coincidental improvement of active neck flexion range of motion (Z=-1.414; p=0.157). After comparing final neck flexion range of motion results, there was no difference between groups (U=59.5; p=0.312). Active neck right side rotation range of motion improved only in study group (Z=-3.087; p=0.002) with difference between groups after the trial (U=40.5; p=0.037). Active neck left side rotation improved in both study group (Z=-2.419; p=0.004) and control group (Z=-2.0; p=0.046). There was statistically significant difference between the groups after the trial (U=34; p=0.016). After the exercise program W.W.K. Hoeger's visual posture assessment scale showed statistically significant difference in study group (Z=3.340; p=0.001), in control group (Z=-1.0; p=0.317). After comparing results between the groups there was no difference after the trial (U=73.5; p=0.81). To compare the

results of change in neck movement amplitudes and posture before and after the study, statistical differences were noticed in study group (p>0.001).

**Conclusions:** It was found that corrective neck exercise program, can help to improve neck flexion and active rotation range of motion and posture. According to our study, corrective exercises during work time was effective for functional neck state in women performing sedentary work.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Mendonça CR, Noll M, Rodrigues AP dos S, Vitorino PV de O, Mendes M de A, Silveira EA. Association of Pain, Severe Pain, and Multisite Pain with the Level of Physical Activity and Sedentary Behavior in Severely Obese Adults: Baseline Data from the DieTBra Trial. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health. 2020, 17(12):4478.
- 2. Palmlöf L, Holm LW, Alfredsson L, Magnusson C, Vingård E, Skillgate E. "The impact of work related physical activity and leisure physical activity on the risk and prognosis of neck pain a population based cohort study on workers." BMC Musculoskelet Disord. 2016, 17(1):219.
- 3. Genebra CVDS, Maciel NM, Bento TPF, Simeão SFAP, Vitta AD. Prevalence and factors associated with neck pain: a population-based study. Braz J Phys Ther. 2017, 21(4):274–80.
- 4. Arshadi R, Ghasemi GA, Samadi H., "Effects of an 8-week selective corrective exercises program on electromyography activity of scapular and neck muscles in persons with upper crossed syndrome: Randomized controlled trial". Physical Therapy in Sport. 2019, 851–6.

## EVALUATION OF TRUNK MUSCLES ELECTRICAL ACTIVITY, LOAD OF EXERCISE AND SUBJECTIVE SENSATION USING OUTDOOR FITNESS EQUIPMENT FOR YOUNG ADULTS

#### Tautvydas Bradūnas, Algė Daunoravičienė, Deivydas Velička

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine

**Introduction.** According to the World Health Organization, physical inactivity is the fourth leading risk factor for global mortality (1). Outdoor fitness equipment (OFE) areas have become popular in public spaces, they potentially increase people's awareness and improve public health through increased physical activity (PA) (2)(3). Studies stated that OFE has a positive effect: it increases PA and attracts people with sedentary lifestyles to exercise (4). However, little is known about OFE usage, so electromyography was used to check how much OFE can affect core muscles during PA. Aim: To evaluate the electrical activity of trunk muscles, load of exercise and subjective sensation while performing exercises with outdoor fitness equipment for young adults.

Research methods and organization. The study was approved by Research Ethics Committee (Nr. BEC-SR(M)-132). The study involved 16 subjects with average age of  $22.94 \pm 1.61$  years. Selection criteria: voluntary consent to participate; no diagnosed neurological and musculoskeletal disorders; no musculoskeletal injuries or pain in the lower back, knees, hips, shoulders and wrists in the last three months and subjects were non-professionals at any sport. Participants were in one exercise group, which included instructions of every exercise, warm-up (7 min.), seven different exercises using OFE (7 min.). Exercises were for different muscle groups and required correct posture. Workout began with sliding (SD) which included most muscle groups and was followed with exercises for different muscle groups. Every exercise of OFE was performed for 30s. with 30s. rest time for only one set during assessment. The electrical activity of the trunk muscles, measured by an electromyograph (Myotrace 400). Assessed muscles: musculus rectus abdominis (RA), musculus erector spinae (ES), musculus obliques abdominis internus (OI), musculus multifidus (MF). Rate of Perceived Exertion (RPE) scale was used to measure the load intensity of exercises. RPE it is a self-reported scale ranging from 1-10,

1 meaning very light activity and 10 – maximal effort activity. Subjective sensation was evaluated with original questionnaire created by the study author, which consisted of questions about pain, comfort, and control of the body and subjects told their sensations during every exercise. The analysis of the research data was performed by the means of mathematical statistical methods using IBM SPSS Statistics 27 software. The Fryman criterion was used to compare more than three dependent samples. Quantitative data are presented as median (m), minimum value (xmin), maximum value (xmax), and mean (x) - m (xmin - xmax; x). Qualitative data are given as a percentage. The difference was considered statistically significant when p < 0.05.

**Results.** After evaluating the electrical activity of the OI muscle during workout the highest electrical activity was seen during "hanging leg raises" (HLR) which reached 25.15 (10.70 – 110; 36.56) uV and lowest during exercise "seated leg press" (SLP) – 4.37 (2.68 – 13.60; 5.59) uV. Significant difference was found between exercises HLR and: (SD) (Z = -2.937; p = 0.003), "lateral leg raises" (LLR) (Z = -2.937), "lateral leg raises" (Z = -2.937), "lateral leg rai 2.687; p = 0.009), SLP (Z = -5.375; p < 0.001) and "cycling while squatted" (CWS) (Z = 3.750; p < 0.001). After evaluating the electrical activity of the RA muscle during workout the highest electrical activity was seen during HLR which reached 49.40 (3.72 - 258.00; 66.15) uV and lowest during exercise SLP - 7.92 (1.58 - 13.30; 8.03) uV. Significant difference was found between exercise HLR and: SD (Z = -4; p < 0.001), LLR (Z = -4.156; p = 0.001), SLP (Z = -4.594; p < 0.001), CWS (Z = -4.594; p < 0.001)3.813; p < 0.001). After evaluating the electrical activity of the MF muscle during training the highest electrical activity was seen during CWS which reached 22.70 (12.00 - 51.50; 24.56) uV and lowest during exercise "seated push up" (SPU) - 5,38 (1.97 - 47.90; 9.59) uV. Significant difference was found between exercise CWS and: SPU (Z = -3.500; p < 0.001), "seated pull up" (SPUP) (Z = -2.937; p = 0.003). After evaluating the electrical activity of the ES muscle during training the highest electrical activity was seen during HLR, which reached 25.30 (5.95 - 87.70; 29.63) uV and lowest during exercise SPU 8.08 (3.28-12.30; 8.07) uV. But in only two exercises significant difference was shown between HLR and: SPU (Z = -4.334; p < 0.001), LLR (Z = -2.531; p = 0.019). According to subjects, exercises SD, SPUP, LLR, SLP and CWS were painless, comfortable, and easy to control. Exercises SPU and HLR were difficult to control and only HLR was uncomfortable and painful from all the exercises. RPE of whole workout was rated 4 (2-7; 4) points out of 10.

Conclusions: Abdominal muscles electrical activity peaked on hanging leg raise and lowered on seated leg press exercises. Electrical activity of multifidus muscle – highest on cycling while squatted, erector spinae muscle – on hanging leg raise exercise, but both were lowest on seated push-ups. Subjective sensation of most exercises is likely to be comfortable, not painful or difficult to control. Load intensity of exercising one set on outside fitness equipment for young adults was moderate activity.

- 1. WHO guidelines on physical activity and sedentary behaviour. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2020.
- 2. Chow H, Wu D-R. Outdoor Fitness Equipment Usage Behaviors in Natural Settings. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health. 2019 Jan;16(3):391.
- 3. Chow H, Mowen A, Wu G. Who Is Using Outdoor Fitness Equipment and How? The Case of Xihu Park. IJERPH. 2017 Apr 21;14(4):448.
- 4. Mora R, Weisstaub G, Greene M, Herrmann G. Outdoor gyms in Santiago: urban distribution and effects on physical activity. Motriz J Phys Educ. 2017 Aug 24;23(3). Available from: doi.org/10.1590/S1980-6574201700030005

## CORRECTIVE EXERCISES: ASSESSMENT OF DYNAMIC CHANGES IN ANKLE STABILITY AND PROPRIOCEPTION AMONG WOMEN ATTENDING DANCE WORKOUTS

#### Miglė Vaiciukevičiūtė, Agnė Slapšinskaitė - Dackevičienė

Lithuanian University of Health Sciences, Department of Sports Medicine

**Introduction.** Daily ankle injuries affect 1 in 10,000 persons [1]. Specifically, up to 69.8% of professional dancers and 42.1% of non-professional dancers suffer from ankle injuries [2]. Insufficient function recovery can lead to ankle joint chronic instability, that is mainly associated with components of the nerve and muscle junction. Consequently, those changes lead towards, impairments of sensory motor skills and contribute to stabilization loss [4]. As evidenced, around 20% of dancers with acute ankle sprain develop chronic ankle instability [3]. This research aims to evaluate the dynamical changes in the indicators of dancers' ankle stability and proprioception after the corrective exercises appliance.

Research methods and organization. Ethical approval for this study was obtained from Research Ethics Committee (No. BEC-SR(M)-37). All participants signed the informed consent form before taking part in this study. Seventeen cheerleading dancers aged 19 to 30 [5], with at least one year of dancing experience, without any ankle injuries in the past year, were enrolled. Prior to study initiation all dancers had to fill-in questionnaire about their age, weight, height, dance training attendance period, and intensity of pain in the ankle area. Ankle range of motion (ROM) was evaluated using goniometry. Neuromuscular control and ankle stability were evaluated through Single Leg Hop (SLH) test. Functional movement of the body was evaluated with functional movement screening (FMS) test. For dynamic balance, mobility and movement symmetry evaluation Y balance test was used. Based on the results of the initial evaluation, corrective exercise program was developed. Participants had to perform it 3 times per week before their typical workout for the next 6 weeks, in total 18 sessions. Once corrective program was ended, the second evaluation was performed. Statistical analysis was performed using SPSS 21.0 and Microsoft Excel for Windows. A non-parametric Wilcoxon test was used to compare the two dependent samples. We set the significance level at p < 0.05.

Results. There was increase in right ankle extension ROM after corrective exercise program (p=0,026; Z= -2.220), without changes in the left. No increase was present in both ankles flexion ROM after corrective exercise programme. We observed increase in right ankle eversion ROM after corrective exercise programme (p=0.007; Z= -2.719), without changes in left. Thus, increase in right ankle inversion ROM after exercise programme (p=0.027; Z= -2.212), with no changes in the left. There was increase in distance of right leg single leg hop test after corrective exercise programme (p=0.015; Z= -2.44), with no changes in the left. There was Z= -3.519) and (p=0.001; Z= -3.409), respectively. After corrective exercise programme there was incensement in left and right crossover single leg hop test (p=0.022; Z= -2.298) and (p=0.001; Z= -3.310), respectively. We observed changes in timed single leg hop after exercise programme in right (p=0.006; Z= -2.756), with no changes in the left. In FMS Hurdle step increase was present with right and left leg (p=0.002; Z= -3.162 and p=0.02; Z= -2.333), respectively. In Y-Balance test we observed distance augmentation in posterior direction with right and left leg (p=0.005; Z= -2.817 and p=0,006; Z= -2.769), respectively. There was incensement in posterolateral direction with right leg (p=0.001; Z= -3.385), without changes in left. Posteromedial direction augmented with right leg (p=0.005; Z= -2.817), but not with left.

**Conclusions:** 1. Dancers' ankle range of motion improved after the corrective exercise programme. 2. Improvement of dancers' neuromuscular control of the ankle stabilizing muscles and ankle stability

was present after the intervention. 3. Improvement of dancers' dynamic balance was present after corrective exercise programme, however there was no improvement of dancers' movements symmetry and accuracy.

#### **References list:**

- 1. Gudas R, Šiupšinskas L, Trumpickas V, Mikučionis P, Piktuižytė A, Tankevičius G et al., (2015) Sportinės traumos: diagnostika, gydymas, reabilitacija ir prevencija: mokomoji knyga. Kaunas: INDIGO Print, 243
- 2. Costa MSS, Ferreira AS, Orsini M, Silva EB, Felicio LR (2016). Characteristics and prevalence of musculoskeletal injury in professional and non-professional ballet dancers. The Brazilian Journal of Physical Therapy, 20(2):166-175
- 3. Al-Mohrej, OA, & Al-Kenani, NS (2016). Chronic ankle instability: Current perspectives. Avicenna journal of medicine, 6(4), 103
- 4. Strøm, M, Thorborg, K, Bandholm, T, Tang, L, Zebis, M, Nielsen, K, & Bencke, J (2016). Ankle joint control during single– legged balance using common balance training devices–implications for rehabilitation strategies. *International journal of sports physical therapy*, 11(3), 388
- 5. Horiuchi, S, Yu, HJ, Luk, A, Rudd, A, Ton, J, Kuoy, E, Russell, JA, Sharp, K and Yoshioka, H, (2020). T1rho and T2 mapping of ankle cartilage of female and male ballet dancers. *Acta Radiologica*, 61(10), pp.1365-1376.

# EFFECTIVENESS OF FUNCTIONAL MAGNETIC STIMULATION ON PELVIC FLOOR MUSCLE FUNCTION, URINARY INCONTINENCE SYMPTOMS AND QUALITY OF LIFE FOR FEMALE WITH STRESS URINARY INCONTINENCE

#### Indrė Kirklytė<sup>1</sup>, Renata Rutkauskaitė<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Lithuanian Sports University, Department of Applied Biology and Rehabilitation; <sup>2</sup>Lithuanian Sports University, Department of Health, Physical and Social Education

**Introduction.** Stress urinary incontinence (SUI) is one of the most common types of urinary incontinence, described as involuntary urination due to a weak pelvic floor muscles with a sudden increase in pressure in the abdominal cavity [1,2]. Studies show that SUI are not only experienced by older women, but also by women who have not given birth, and especially by young and middle-aged women who have given birth [3,4,5]. In the treatment of SUI, the applicability of functional magnetic stimulation is increasingly seen due to deeper tissues penetration, induce automatic muscle contraction [6]. Unlike before, pelvic floor muscle training with exercises is used [7]. Research aim: to evaluate the effects of functional magnetic stimulation in women with SUI.

Research methods and organization. The research was approved by the LSU Bioethics Center NR.MNL-KIN(M)-2021–404. The study was performed in the period of 07/21/2021-30/10/2021 in Vilnius. The study included 24 women 29-49 years old who have complained of SUI for at least 4 weeks, who gave birth and signed the consent form. Women with pregnancy, urinary tract infection, cancer, epilepsy or skin conditions with implanted pacemakers, metal implants were excluded from the study. Study participants were randomly divided into two groups: the I group (n=12, mean age 40.25±6.63), in which participants underwent functional magnetic stimulation and the II group (n=12, mean age 37.58±5.99) in which subjects took a pelvic floor muscle training (PFMT) program. Both procedures lasted up to 30 minutes. The intensity of the magnetic field was regulated up to the comfort level of the participant (2%-100%). PFMT program consists of breathing, pelvic floor muscle strength,

endurance exercises and thighs, glutes, deep back and abdominal muscle strengthening exercises. Intensity of exercises 2 sets 10 reps. Participants were evaluated before the intervention and repeated after 12 procedures. For both groups, the procedures were performed 2/3 times a week. Subjects responded to a general questionnaire before the intervention, and before and after the intervention, the International Consultation on Incontinence Questionnaire—Short Form (ICIQ-SF) and Incontinence Impact Questionnaire—Short Form (IIQ-7) were used to assess the symptoms of urinary incontinence and their impact on quality of life. Pelvic floor muscle strength and endurance were assessed with a "Pelvexiser" perineometer. Statistical analysis was performed by IBM SPSS Statistics 22.0 and Microsoft Excel software. Due to insufficient sample, the Wilcoxon criteria was applied to the two dependent samples. The nonparametric Mann — Whitney Wilcoxon criteria was applied to the two independent samples. Differences with p<0.05 were considered statistically significant.

Results. The results of I group urinary incontinence symptoms and their impact on quality of life (ICIQ-SF) comparing before and after the intervention decreased statistically significantly (Z = -2.82; p<0.05) in the same way as in II group (Z = -2.75; p<0.05). Assessing, the quality of life of women (IIQ-7) it was observed that the results in I group comparing before and after the intervention were statistically significantly improved (Z = -2.82; p<0.05) as in II group (Z = -2.75; p<0.05). The results of I group pelvic floor muscle strength parameters comparing before and after the intervention increased statistically significantly (Z = -2.904; p<0.05) as well as in II group (Z = -2.904; p<0.05). The results of I group pelvic floor endurance assessment comparing before and after the intervention increased statistically significantly (Z = -2.945; p<0.05) as in II group (Z = -2.275; p<0.05). Urinary incontinence symptoms and their impact on quality of life (ICIQ-SF) results after showed no significant difference between I and II groups (U= 59.00, p = 0.44). Quality of life (IIQ-7) results after showed no significant difference between I and II groups (U= 58.00, p = 0.39). Pelvic floor muscle strength results after did not differ statistically significantly between I and II group subjects (U= 59.00, p = 0.45). The results of pelvic floor muscle endurance after did not show a significant difference between I and II groups (U=57.00, p=0.38). In addition, no statistical significance was found when assessing the change in urinary incontinence symptoms and their impact on quality of life, the chance in pelvic floor muscle strength and endurance between the two groups (p>0.05).

Conclusions: Functional magnetic stimulation and pelvic floor muscle training program had significant positive effects on pelvic floor muscle function, urinary incontinence symptoms, and quality of life in women with stress urinary incontinence. Assessing pelvic floor muscle function, urinary incontinence symptoms, and quality of life no significant difference was found between functional magnetic stimulation and pelvic floor muscle training program treatments for women with stress urinary incontinence.

- 1. Zhang RQ, Xia MC, Cui F, Chen JW, Bian XD, Xie HJ, et al. Epidemiological survey of adult female stress urinary incontinence. BMC Women's Health. 2021;21:172
- 2. Bialy AIM, Bogucka DK, Nowakowski C, Tim S. Urinary Incontinence in Women: Modern Methods of Physiotherapy as a Support for Surgical Treatment or Independent Therapy. Journal of Clinical Medicine. 2020
- 3. Almousa S, Bandin van Loon A. The prevalence of urinary incontinence in nulliparous adolescent and middle-aged women and the associated risk factors: A systematic review. International Journal of Midlife Health and Beyond. 2018;107:78–83
- 4. Lin YH, Chang SD, Hsieh WC, Chang YL, Chueh HY, Chao AS, et al. Persistent stress urinary incontinence during pregnancy and one year after delivery; its prevalence, risk factors and impact on quality of life in Taiwanese women: An observational cohort study. Taiwanese Journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology. 2018;57:340–345
- 5. Milsom I, Gyhagen M. The prevalence of urinary incontinence. Climacteric. 2019; 22:217–222

- 6. Chen X, Liu X, Cui Y, Xu G, Liu L, Zhang X, et al. Efficacy of functional magnetic stimulation in improving upper extremity function after stroke: a randomized, single-blind, controlled study. Journal of International Medical Research. 2020;48
- 7. Lim R, Liong ML, Lau YK, Leong WS, Khan NAK, Yuen KH. Effect of Pulsed Magnetic Stimulation on Sexual Function in Couples with Female Stress Urinary Incontinence Partners. Journal of Sex and Marital Therapy. 2018; 44:260–268